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Hpb 440,874 313,036
WA 4858 6,936,056 8,255,947

LR ABRTIRIEE P EmEXZFELRIEL o
BE_T_-F+_A=1t—"BN_FT__F+_A=1+—"HLEFE  RTRKEFBEIATFKA

Sh - Ef B EEBAGERAEBRANI10% - LEREECDEHMIIER - KREEMBROIAETS
DHETEA] -
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XEoBEM )
1 B E (47
(i) HFHHEE

R (B BBRIN) 6,031,433 7,065,638
MR AL e & RN 307,987 272,034
FREERE 152,973 164,014
HAh 2,430 16,548
EMENE ERRE 6,494,823 7,518,234

B3ERBEEERNRBEEMELRIEL M T EEEER/RAFEF AR MEHKRANKRARE
NMBESETRAEE

FREFER

BE_T_=—F+t_A=1—"BLFE  HREAXREFLPHENHE (BEAKBEHERA10%3A L)
A#17/41,659,793,000/ 7 + 1,441,042,00078 7T + 1,033,489,000/ 7T * 793,395,00078 7T K 745,026,0007%
7TE o

BEZT__S+A=1THILFE HHREMATFHEANHEE (BEAREHERA10%5UA £)IK
AK7731,933,994,000/8 7T * 1,728,715,000/ 7T * 1,400,030,000757T 5 1,064,670,000/4 7T

WA~ B R WS
WAMSHTT :

EFEEHWA
HESEAREIINZNFIFEBINZR 6,936,056 8,255,947
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5. WA > Hblk AR W= (&)
BEEEHWA
() DHFUAEH

BT

Y (BABRRIN) 6,495,182 7,942,911

Efb 440,874 313,036
6,936,056 8,255,947

WA TSR B

RE—BEEZNEY 6,936,056 8,255,947

TRETARENRRNRGESE  BRERSHINEHNEED -

RBEVA AR NABZRARER
HESELABIIINEMFRHESING 53,851 32,483

(i) BEHEF
HESTARERINIRMNFHEENR
BHEERINEYRERTT - AFRBTEBERERFT60E120RAX N ©
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5. WA > Htilk AR W= (&)

HAag A K& Wz

FLEWA 28,167 8,676
LN 38,268 121,471
AERA 23,054 11,075
g S A 334 705
HeWABRE 22,803 26,147
& U B 5 IR R B B B 1,574 N
Bl & FE UL E 5 5K IE - 2,523
WSEREIR T < B E 5 FE - 827
WER AR 2 KRN R R BT E R 2,110 728
HEMZE  HWERRBER RMEAEEERRFE - 525,446
HE—RWB ARz K 42,507 i
MEEBKZ K 7,375 £
HNEESTE e R ]E 111,780 394,900
Hth 1,654 1,478
HA A Rz 858 279,626 1,093,976

# AR B R F 2T 2 DXL WBUS B ZE R MBUABTRRE - XS RM I BERRERMNEGHEMHIASTE - ©
BEZ__F+_A=+—BLLFE  ARERBEHRIMBRBLNHBEEHMOETHEE (KB ) - TIER -
W2 F R BUNER4973,463,000/8 7T A2 BRI -

* REBE-_Z__F+_A=+—HLLFE  REKE AKELEETURHFMNOME - BELRRERIRERESR

ZE - RRFETRRER - BRBUTMERAKS59,223,0008 TR EYE - ME &REEANMEREEE (GRS
BHE Y%  BERREEBREREEENREIE) R FRES o
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Tty ey e (=

6. MERAK
REBNRERANAITOT :

RTERKEMEENT S 223,616 131,257
HEBBEHHE 433 1,020
TEAFEGFABEZNEMEEN S g% 224,049 132,277
B FIBEARE (9,487) (10,704)

214,562 121,573

7. BRBIATEF(EER)
AEEORBATRT (BREMRGIA):

BEEFERA* 6,428,556 7,792,204
% EREM BN & 4,380 4,350
HE—HRB AR 2 W 1 (42,507) =
T —HEE ARz kE 17 (632) L
M - WERZENE 13 812,325 1,001,293
FRAEEENE 14(a) 21,825 23,803
Rt AHEB BT EMNHEERNK 14(c) 2,020 3,143
GERE (BEER)FE" (40,518) 108,229
B RE % = 52,488
M - WE REERE 13 45,000 285,401
e E S ERE, CRE R &) 19 (1,574) 1,685
sy, (B8 B E 5o 4,729 (2,523)

EERAAZ(TREESHE —KizEs):
TENFS  fE4 -~ ZEENEF 1,724,693 2,315,635
VARRHE E E BB AR A =2 - 1,979
BREFTEIHR(REHKETE) 131,052 163,193
1,855,745 2,480,807
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7.
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BREBLATERF(ER) (@)
AREBORBANEF, (SR EMNRGIA): ()

¥XTERAYERKRETS WA LR (22,803) (26,147)
B HEREMETERAMEMEBREENEERL

ERX 4,421 4,813
e WA FE (18,382) (21,334)

HEMXE  BERREEE LEREEE

B (k) #aat 2,344 (525,446)
HESHEAREHEZIERBEE 2B 964 -
PESMIAEATEEBERFE

=i F 15,855 40,725

REBEE - 5,160
HNEESTE 5 2 F B (111,780) (394,900)

G BEFERMKAEIE,304,926,0008 T(—F = =4 : 3,412,262,000/86T)NIFTE - EEEFBHZ R
FERE/(BELDR)FHE  ENTALNGSEERBEENHEERERBEA -

> FIABREBRBRPIIHEKA] -
xS AGEBRHERPIEMA] -

ek WSHEWE SRR EWE HHIEREF AR BERPIEMFEX] - BREKEZKEBEREHHKIA
RERET AR BERRPIEBBARKES] -

wexex SRR HIRER AR FUKFEMS AR B AHERNERKRHR -

# HENE  BENMREHRE RERAEEERSFEFAGEBRaRPIHBRA RS - HEWE -
s MR B B IRt AR e BERPI AR -

##  SNEIE R W R AG S BRRERPI AP A RS -
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Bt B AR MY RE

—E-=4+-A=+-A

EERFETRAEMS
REEEBREXIMBERARNEERSM)ER LTRB[ LWAA]) - FEDAEDIF383(1)@) - (b)
(OROBEARAR (BREEHEE)APIP2HETEROFNEERERTRABOMSMT :

W 1,188 781
Hib 4 :
e R REDA S 5,511 6,208
RIRTELL 402 350
ECLENEN - 297
RIRE B 34 35
5,947 6,890
7,135 7,671

ETESCHREFARKEMREHMNRGER AN QR ERAET SR NTOBRE - £ T FBFRRP B HRRHMT
30 - ZEBRENATECREBHRERER AR ERL AHEE - MEFIMBRRMEENE
BAUBNALEERNERITRAB ZHMHENR -
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8. EERFETHAEMS(#)
(a) BN IFEMITESE
FREBIIERITE SRS RRD R -

—E_=F
B AR TR
FET
BEELE 198 = 198
BN FELE 198 = 198
EERRLE 198 = 198
REREE 198 = 198
792 = 792
et

B2 15K HrNsaEa

TR TAET

Be=ELE 198 19 217
2 JELE 198 19 217
EERRLE 198 19 217
RERLA 14 = 14

608 57 665
# RARAAER B —F+ - AABEEEARRRNBIIFNTES o

FA - UEEBEN TELFATES (T —_—5F : §) -
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Tty ey e (=

8. EERFETHAEME#E)
(b) HITEE  EATEENFETHAE

§4 28 Bikd
REWFH REAR ST
TR T T#x
—E-=F
HOES
BYELLE = 801 120 = = 921
B EE = 1,016 = = 16 1,032
itk e 198 - = - - 198
MEARLE = 1,879 282 = = 2,161
GABRRE - 1,815 = - 18 1,833
FHTEE
gyphks 198 - - - = 198

396 5511 402 - 34 6,343

g R RikE
EE 32 g REWNEZ KA BRI sTEIfSR

TAT TR TR TR

—E-CF

WOIES
HyEEL - 821 68 = = 889
BE AL = 909 = 64 17 990
il 576k 157 778 = ) = 957
MERLE = 1,880 282 90 = 2,252
BABLE = 1,820 = 64 18 1,902

FHEE:
ByERE" 16 = = = = 16

173 6,208 350 240 35 7,006
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8.

99

BEERFETHRAEMS (2)

(b) BITESF  FWTEERFBITHRAS (&)
s RCE--FZA+AR  BEFEETEREAATNNRITE - BEYEENS EHSH3,731,0008 TR
%198,00087C + MM A KEABEEALRANRITE -

i BYEZRER_T_—_F=A T NAEZEARARNINTES -

FA - EEFFTBTRABMEREXFRERETAME -

hEmEHMES
FRAAEERLRSFHEEEFE=-R(ZT-—_F :  MBESF - REMSOFBIHN LXHFESH - FR
HBME(ZE-—F : ZR)ReFWEE CFARRESEREIETRABR)HMEFBNT ¢

Fe o RUREYE 1,242 2,070
FIBIEA 1,482 1,761
VAR #E 45 & B IR 5 =2 = 405
RNE TR 37 48

2,761 4,284

BATHMBENRSHMFESMIFEIRTRAEREABLT ¢

1,000,001 L= 1,500,0005% 70 1 2
1,500,001 7c £2,000,000/5 7T 1 1
2 3

BT MIFEEMFERTRABRREEREAAKERHARBER AN QR ERE SR N2 BARE -
E—HHBHNPHEREMEIOZHEA - ZFBRENAHEIRELEREE - YEREBHRNERS
RAHER - Mt AR FERBEFEMBERRNESBENEAALXNESFMFEENFETRTHRARRE
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Tty ey e (=

Frig i

A R B A [ Y A BB A (AR ORF) - R ME BB FERER(—E=—F &) - [
BREFNPIEREAEBEE BN AETERRALY - RBREY - HANRATEEEROBE
HE o

REERE
BPER — AR B (B BRI
REEREZ 162,464 103,600
4,916 18,756
B SEBRET R
BUER — /&5
KEZREZ 18,754 13,465
B AR R (27,469) (20,373)
EEFIA(FIEE16) 3,511 64,956
REERIBRAZ L5 162,176 180,404
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10. FiiS®ice)
RAADAEEABHWBER AEMEEEBRACHEM A EORPATRT, (FR)OBREMAY (ER)
(N F12%E25%)(ZB=—4F : 12%F25%) ' BREBRBEAEOBAENZ(KR) UEHT |

= F etk
FE(EBRER
FIRRSM)
TAERT
BRELATEF,(B518) (18,228) 25,614 (47,357) (126,674) (166,645)
BEAER RS ENTIE (3,008) 3,073 (11,886) (25,320) (37,141)
BEREX - - (26,147) - (26,147)
BT B B A 23 v A
BI0%TEENRNTE - - 106,446 - 106,446
BRAAEHAM 2 BN ERR B 2 - - 4,916 (27,469) (22,553)
BAGHBA (347) - (13,086) (13,563) (26,996)
TAMBHEL 3,355 - 23,943 54,563 81,861
KRR 2 TIEEE - - 88,809 - 88,809
HAh - - (2,103) - (2,103)

BASEERREAENTIE
X/ (%) = 3,073 170,892 (11,789) 162,176
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Bt B AR MY RE

—E-=4+-A=+-A

rEsi®)
= deai

FE(FERR
B FIERSM)

TAET TR

BREATRF,(B51E) (16,688) 7,869 292,714 (45,388) 238,507
BEER R ENTIE (2,754) 945 73,179 (9,245) 62,125
BERE - - (21,262) - (21,262)
F B T B A R AT 99 IR S

B10%TEBNBNTE - - 3,916 - 3,916
BB AR A 2R R FE

2%t EENBITE - 9,790 - - 9,790
EAREERIZI0%TER

HBme 2 - - 16,540 - 16,540
B AL BAR 2 BN AT IR A 2 - - 18,756 (20,373) (1,617)
BABBA (104) e (38,580) (7,261) (45,945)
AAHBAE 2,858 - 112,985 29,933 145,776
RERZHIEER - - 50,251 e 50,251
BB 8 A < THIBEE - - (38,285) = (38,285)
KR Rl =58 - - - 38 38
HAth - - (923) — (923)

BAEE BRI R ENTIR
X/ (%) = 10,735 176,577 (6,908) 180,404
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10.

11.

12.

Fiis®ie)
BREE-ZTT/\F—A-BREMNPECENERE - MAELER—IR25% B RHB! -

REVES  BERUEEARRERZEXEZN SN A FIBMNAE[202015235 - BRHEFERM
BRYNEXREBXBNAIANBRIZEBITRER] EeXMEH(EXMAEN ) HEERLR15% °

ER(WDERREHERARRARRTNIIENMBAR - KI(ZEB)EFRRERARMREEFRIX
(BE)ERARRARTAREETHNMBLAR  REIEEXBERAES LRI EBITREEMEALEMRSE
HEEHEI5% °

BPIPTISH T IO RPN B A B AR BUE A 12% 5T & -

Hﬁ /%\

EEaABRRE—8(ZZ—_—F : ZRTBIRSEN) = 60,000

EEeRETERREBRE T =FT_A=1t—"HIFEZRPKRE -

AATRESEAELERER,(FE)

EREABE(ZZEZF : AN IREBEAFEARR G REFE AEGEIE230,815,0008 (===
F HmA172,149,0008 7T ) RANFE B 1T E @R INE T 1980845,662,67 1R (ZF = = : 845,662,671[%)
FE T BERERERG REEESE ZRG -

BE_Z_=ZFR"ZT-__H+-A=+HLFE SIERBEIMR/EMZINEREARRFN, (BR)E
B REARMATEERENMEIINERELREN,(BER)SELTEEELE -
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13. V¥  BERRXRE

G £ER
HUEST PAZHE
THT Ti#n
“3-=#+-R=1-H
RZB-=£-A-R:
A 4,757,061 9,214 9,402,296 1,487,111 13311 33076 15,992,729
ZEERAE (1,905,588) (200)  (6,019,949)  (1,465915) (9.273) - (9,404,926)
REHE 2,851,473 5,013 3,382,347 21,856 4,038 323,076 6,587,803
RZZ-=F-F-H
TREERE 2,851,473 5,013 3,382,347 21,856 4,038 323,076 6,587,803
e 11,610 - 37,503 19,534 3,340 138,607 210,684
&t 20,600 = 161,464 64,575 1,644 (248,283) =
HE /i - - (2.991) (5.699) (350) (8.822) (17.862)
BRSBENE ERDEE (WD) (76,015) - - - - - (76,015)
AT - - (44,644) (250) (106) = (45,000)
ERRERE(HET) (206,084) (170) (529,791) (74311) (1,309) = (812,325)
EiA% (67,859) 68 (83,270) (9,485) (129) (7,008) (167,683)
R-B-=%+-A=1-H"
TREERAE 2,533,725 431 2,920,618 16,160 7,128 197,660 5,679,602
R-E-=F+-f=1-H:
R 4,375,252 9,351 8,980,455 1,478,386 15,562 197,660 15,056,666
ZEERAE (1,841,527) (5040)  (6,059,837)  (1,462,226) (8,434) - (9377.064)
REFE 2533725 431 2,920,618 16,160 7,128 197,660 5,679,602
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13. V¥  BERRE®)

BENEEE
T

“B-—%#4-F=1-H
N-F--F-A-A:

A 4,981,612 9957 10,129,750 1,715,443 14,083 806,501 17,657,346

ZMERAE (2,152,384) (3,686  (5849.136)  (1.472,923) (9,355) - (9487.484)

FHFE 2,829,228 6,271 4,280,614 242,520 4728 806,501 8,169,362
RES TR

TR EHTERRE 2,829,228 6,271 4,280,614 242,520 4728 806,501 8,169,362
hE 4,486 21 58,228 23,370 770 483,176 570,051
&7 586,258 = 241,148 36,250 351 (864,007) =
HE /M (114,189) - (27.561) (15,663) (94) (52,168) (209,674)
ERHENEFRBEE (D) - “ (26,202) 8 E = (26.210)
AEET) - - (283,561) (1,555) (285) = (285,401)
ERAEREIET) (221,841) (787) (565,349) (212,265) (1,051) - (1,00129)
EiAz (232,470) (492) (294,970) (50,793) (381) (50,426) (629,532)
KRB _#+-A=1-H "

TREHTERRE 2851473 5,013 3,382,347 21,85 4,038 323,076 6,587,803
=2 i =

A 4,757,061 9,214 9,402,296 1,487,771 13311 33076 15,992,729

2IMERAE (1,905,588) (4201 (6,019.949)  (1465915) (9273) = (9,404,926)

REFE 2851473 5013 3,382,347 21,85 4,038 33,076 6,587,803
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13.

PR

Ee st =g

ME  BERRES)
RZEBE-=F+-"A=+—8 ' AEEMCNPERBEEMFEZ20,413,00087C( == = —4F : 20,223,000
BIL)NAT L REFE FUER - IMEAKREEME—RBITEENERHFE27) °

NRZEBE-=F+=-A=+—H  BEEEFE®E FEA37,948,000/80( —ZE = = : 41,280,000/& 70 )= TEF
MNEEEEZRSNEREY - B2RE A5EELESHBEFTFZATERZRABRAK - URAEEH
BESKWHEPREE T ERIERREE N TRIET 2 TEEER

RBE_E_=ZF+_A=Z+-—AR-_ZT-__F+_A=+—HILEE  ERNLERHEESTAUEKER
REFEERBHCESEMN((REELBN]NECEEET S  EBBYHEAENNT=-A=1+—81
WA E S EELRENE - REEABMMAIRERESREFEAEBEET - FREENRBEEERE
HENAFHUEREINERRERERATE - REREBAMEANBRBRAIMIRER14% (ZT_Z2F :
13%) - IRIBEIREBNE - BHERMERE45,000,00087T(=F = 4 : 240,512,00087C) * LAY -
WENEBEBARFEAEEENROERHRZEER S =F+_A=+—HBHM 7 KE2L £ %6,486,849,000/
TL(ZZTZZF : 7,475,224,000%870) - REE-ZE-_—_F+_A=+—HILFE ' PRERESELEMNTE
252,488,000 LER =S F+ A=+ —BEBEURAE (MIzE15) °

RZZBZ=F+—AZ+=ZH  FAEEERILERNAZEEEZE e RERRM(RI)BRAREI Y=
D[zl LABEHMN BB E R E MR M HEREE((AREMRMEE]) - A%
EzEHET HREFONIKEeBEBEPORELBEARAEEREARBEREEEXNAENERES
RTE o B R ER M BRTEE 9 Bl 815,445,000/ 7T (K155 14) 576,015,000/ LA E T L RIEFE B AE
BENERYHE  BERRBEERERELEZIERDEE - ARBEHMMEEEBKARTZEIERS - BH
EZEMBmMEENE —SHERBERAATBHA_S_ME—A=1THMNER - RBEHKRE @ BXE
HRMEEER T _MF=A+=ARTHEAARREFIAG LERAFRRIE -

HE_Z-_—_F+_A=1+—BHLFE r WIRB(KHFE5)% - BEEECHMBIASEBEL N &M TN LR
B471,099,0008THE THEAKSE RAREEEE  YMALEHEN - ZSFBEDAREERIBES
RAMBEHINBMFHEEING - ZEEENTRERBERREBLE = FFTREBEETCHRATFEREE
BRAETE - BR{EEI844,889,0008 TEREBEE S - F+-_A=1+—RB I FENBRITER A L5
Yo ZEBEMEEFME26,210,0008TER-_S-_—"F+-A=+—HhEYE  HEREBERZ AR
EHEZERBEE -
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14. HE
AEBEAEEA
AEBBRETARCLHME BB RERPATRETAHREAN - AT B ABN —SZHHEE
MEHANSOFEMNMAE T - MERSHHEESHREE2EAT0EAZR(=S-——F : 3AAZ60EAZ
) MSEMMASHREA3E - KERBATSENTEENREANAANEE R, SEREESE - &
¥ - AENZIYRABRAERNAESERERAR

(@) EHEBRE

HELH
TAET

RNEB S = 683,913 1,639 L] 685,825
RE 278,396 22,011 Et 300,407
HeE (16,914) = - (16,914)
HERX (H:E7) (18,137) (5,565) (101) (23,803)
BE 4, 3 2 (58,038) (36) (20) (58,094)

PR Sy e s HI= = E K

ke S S 869,220 18,049 152 887,421
NE 8,785 - - 8,785
EREREREZIERDEE

(MF5E23) (15,445) - - (15,445)
ATARE - (12,611) - (12,611)
HEE®H (20,875) - - (20,875)
ER (E7) (19,622) (2,107) (96) (21,825)
b 5, A% (17,924) (280) 1 (18,203)
RZEZ=F+=—A=+—H 804,139 3,051 57 807,247

107 EREIRZBREMRAT F# 2023



Bt B AR MY RE

Tty ey e (=

14. HE#®)
FEBEREBEAE)
by MEAEE
NEMBEaENETERSENT

N Teya e = 266,277 1,997
e 8,008 300,407
FAERH RIZFH S 433 1,020
AR IE (13,127) -
HEBK (28,250) -
(BN (88,656) (33,277)
P& 5 A% (2,320) (3,870)
gk =i El 142,365 266,277
DT

mEE D 133,100 244,513

EMEIER 9,265 21,764

DA

HEBEERS -
—FRN 133,100 244,513
FF 1,206 5,223
Fo-ERF(BEEEMT) 277 8,574
fiEp ohakad 7,782 7,967
142,365 266,277

HEBBEZ AT RBENMEIRKRME39 -
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14. & &)
AEBERAABAE)
() URFPHEZARSHEENNSENT

HEABENTE 433 1,020
CREESERE 21,825 23,803
REHEEENAX(REETRERF) 1,970 3,105
ERAHEREEEENRZ(REETHEAT) 50 38
MEESz W (7,375) =
RATEIERE 2 e (516) =
REEANERNESEE 16,387 27,966

(dy HEMRSREBENERRMEIQFIFE -
AEBEAEHBAA
AEERBSLEHETHBSESIMNBELKELE - HEKABEERKALIMNRES » WIRE
ERATSEGEELITCHESAE - ASERFARABIRNHES KA A22,803,000 (=T =4 :
26,147,000/ 7T) + FEEHNIEREKRMIFES o

R-Z-_=F+-A=1t—8  AEERBEPENAIHHNLLHE TR RKAEEKRNRHREE
s

—FR 22,526 22,751
—FUBERRENAR 18,007 21,670
MENEBBR=FENARN 18,524 19,242
= F R EREEAA 18,497 19,773
PE B ERAFEA 18,824 19,745
BBAF 51,940 73,119

148,318 176,300
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b Tn = e Bl

15. BHE
FHIT

R-ZE-——F— A —HHHRAKEREFE 52,488
FRVE(FIEE7) (52,488)

R-E-_—_F+-_A=1+—HHEREFE -

A e e o e s T
7S 52,488
2:HRE (52,488)

fREFE =

EERERE
BBEBEAHMEKBNEE  BEOoREEEENHEERANEIIINSMFRHREBINRIBSELEMUERE
BIER o

ROCZE-_F+-A=+—H FERHEZXFALERIRNFHREIRRSELEMNH AR EFREZ
REBEAEEEE - EABENRBREEEBMENDIFNMBTRAERRCRERHE - B RERA
P REBR I ATRA IR R R 13% M B A FHRBRE S REMNEREX /2% -

RIZB-Z_F+A=1—B  HfELERHEETARERI RN TFHEEINZREELEMNERE
B  ERAETER - ATEAEREEANAEBERENRERER KBNS ERRHER

BREMNE -BEEETRAENEMEEEEENEE - SERERAIFEN —FRENFHENR - TERE
HIR R BT RFE TS ER ML L5 o

BAIR K — P ARG IR R A RFTBUIE AT K IR EARRA BB A R E AR -

BRIEEEBNT G  REE S - —F+-_A=T—"HILFE R ESZNERREEE52,488,000/8 T °
BB RERE -
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16. EIEFIIE
EEHEEE

QIES:is:
A& FEaR nE - BEX

EROER BT BERE
Fi57 Fi Fi57

T TR B s B S 1)

BEENMIAEE 61,525 8,281 - - 69,806
FRFA R BREERH

EREFIE(FEE10) (58,567) (148) 3,413 3,606 (51,696)
b = (2,958) (724) (106) (112) (3,900)

RZFE_—F+-A=+—HK
—E-=E-A—ANEET

MIREE - 7,409 3,307 3,494 14,210
FAMBRIBEROELETHIE

(KIzE10) - (141) (3,240) (3,423) (6,804)
fE AR - (166) (67) (71 (304)

RoSa= o = HE o HiE
BRI IBEE = 7,102 = = 7,102

AEBR S =Ft+ - A=1+—HEPBEAKEEEEA1,191,178,000/8 L ( —Z = — 4 : 866,050,000/ 7T )
MMEEEER—ERFEREE - WIEHERE R EENHE AT B EEREER - AR R A el &
TR T KIETIBEE  BUERZSEHEEERELCHRIBEE -
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—E-=4+-A=+-A

16. EIEFIE (&)

EEHIEEE
KEBRATE
STARBZERA
WENRBLAREE — WRAREER
WATERE ELNATERR FREEE
T T TR
W-Z--5-A-BNEETHELSE 450 < 60,000 = 60,450
ERMBRERROETHANE0) - - 9,790 3,470 13,260
B - - - (138) (138)

RZE_—F+-R=+-RHk
T =F-f-BMERTHE

A& 450 - 69,790 3332 73,572
ERFABRENELHE (H310) - - - (3,293) (3,293)
ERMBERMELHE(F3E10) - 1,437 - - 1,437
B 5 A% (29) - - (39) (68)

RZE-=F+-A=1—HHLET
REaR o 1,437 69,790 = 71,648

BEPRECEMESHE - RAMNEREESTIRRB AP BEARRERL 2 INEREHREEUW10%TEINT - BE
RMEBZTTN\F—A—HARBER WERRZZTLF+ A=+ —HEMEL 2R - XEBERZE
RABKEXR OB ATR —EENF— A —BREAZEFMORZ R EHZTENFH -
RZBZ=F+=-A=+—0 BEZSRFBRAREXRINNBAREEZGREHEAB(HELHBEERE
WERER) #851#2,073,966,000/8 70 ( =T = —4 : 3,272,208,000/87T) - EERE * ARG A= HIRE=
EMELORHE Bt - AEBEEZEE(EREE) R BRRRELREZEMAI N - WRAQRRFBEK
B X S HO BT BB A R E AR R BA T 29 IR R BB HH &AM AR Al T R AR R E BB R B IELERIE -

ARRAEBRRIENREAAEHLEZE -
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17. R—EBEQTNRE

DIEEEFRE - 12,654
A WNGIED N
FIRERIROFE SRR AEERGHERE FEXH
REHE EmAot
Leading Profit Holding Limited gl EEE/HERE 0%  REHEK
(['Leading Profit]) (ZEZZF : 49%)

AEERBZRRNRERRERANRRIFL2ENBRRFANRARD

TRIRAEE L FEERBEARNEE R FNHBEER

FRD (RN REE (47) (7)
AREBRBZ A RN RERMESE = 12,654

FR - Pleading Profitd))F B A HTHMBEAREE - EEWER632,0008 T °

18. &®FE

EEYR 128,281 224,847
TR M 541,370 677,584
2UPK o 739,003 1,081,499
BEE R FEM 129,971 209,765

1,538,625 2,193,695
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—E-=4+-A=+-A

19. EWEZFE

R E 5508 2,490,039 2,426,112
IR (3,592) (5,166)
2,486,447 2,420,946

AEEFGETEER RN FE0REI120K < BREZFIBNETME o AREYL B ZFHERTE EAEA
mEEMEERRS o

RRERR - AEEREZAHREBERBEFEAENRKEZFTRREDITNOT

3 AR 1,440,992 1,295,835
4% 618 A 1,019,371 1,064,992
7E21218 A 26,084 60,119

2,486,447 2,420,946

FEWE SRR EMNEBREEEEHIINT

F1 5,166 3,481
BAE, CRER ) (KFE7) (1,574) 1,685
IR 3,592 5,166

RIZ-=F+_"A=1+—8  BEEBEHRLIHEBRIZEANTE12(ANEKE ZFIER DA

RZZF-__F+-A=+—8  BEBEENDEAR7E12E A EKE SRR -
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19. EWEZFIEE)

REEHRE B MERRBREETREDN - UERBEEBR - BEXDERAERUBBREANEE

BEPBENDMAMNBHREME - At ERRIAR ISR

- ERRERN RS BHASNERBESE

BRI RAREEGHTRANAERAEER - —RME - BUBSFRERAMER —FERME - AR

HMITIIERR o

UTEIIERASBERKES KA - ERBEERNEERBRNER :

R-B-_=%+-A=+-—H

BHA
1Z3{@ A 4Z6{EA
JEHEEEIE R 0.04% 0.01% 5.33%
BREAaAE(T ST 2,169,308 304,038 10,760
TEHEEEE(THIT) 868 30 574

72128 A
35.73% 0.14%
5,933 2,490,039
2,120 3,592

e e Y e e e

18 Hf

4% 6ME B
TEHIEEEIE R 0.05% 0.02% 6.23%
RERE(FHT) 1,832,492 565,770 21,642
FEHEEEE(TET) 916 113 1,348

72121 A8
44.92% 0.21%
6,208 2,426,112
2,789 5,166

20. FEMNFIE - REREMEWRRE

T FRIE 50,282 59,345
e R H A EWGIE 127,811 134,345
178,093 193,690
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20.

21.

Bt B AR MY RE

Tty ey e (=

BANRE - REREMEWRREE)

EftA LSRN EREERARY ERRCENARSBNERFIEEH - RAEEERE2EAEEB
?IJEE%Eﬂﬁﬁéiﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂémrﬁ}ﬂﬁﬁr EBELL RS EREE - ARBREEN AR MR KRR (40
BA) R =F+-A=+—-BRZZE-_ZF+ A=+ —BNEREEERTARMTEN -

BEERRAFEFAEMZERANREIRE

EERARAFEFAEMBZHARANRERE
BIETERAIRE - RAFE
AER X BRAE 25,236 13,489

AR AEERAZREBNRBME - L RN E S N B iEE AR A FEFARBEZEEA -

BE - Z-ZF+-_A=Z+—"HIFE  AEEEEAZRATFEFAEMEEWANBRARE RGF 5
11,824,000 70 ( =& = — 4 : 185,429,000/ 7T) * W HMEEIkZSH FLATER

BEZZT_=F+_A=1+—HLEFE ' ~25EENEREERAFWENRE334,0008T( T =4 :
705,00057T) ©

EERR  BEAEAFEAARGEARANBARERBIERNRERARR T _EARER - At © %
BREDBERHFEMBHRARNIERDEE -

R BEHRELE R - AEEMN ETRAIEE 2 S EEL 422,362,000 ©
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22.

23.

RERReSEYWHECSERRZRGEBTER

B MIRTTAS - BIEESE HR TN E3E A BT BER 1,333,728 1,809,456
B BT M SRR B SR T A (111,876) (102,659)
B MReEEY 1,221,852 1,706,797

ARE(TAREDRAFERLATIEHRLBREYE  BESELPERNBAET P BERFELRHARE - &
PEREFMEAIAARBECELEPERBENZINETES  BSEFELNSETSHARELR - BIF
BEINEKREE MEERNYEATAIAERLBREY - RIREHARZHFREARE FERESNEEHEBRE
SHEFEH IR S RIRE HBYWH A495,596,000/8 7T ( —F = —4F : 402,897,000/87T) °

RITMERFEABRITEFRMNRZZHNRREAE - EREHERPRA—RE=EAR - RFEAEENA
BREFRME - WARRBHERERFRANZRRFAE - RITESKRMEERFREF OB L EENLE
BIERRERIRTT °

FEHEZERBDEE

REBEEZT_=F+-A=1+—HILFE - BEAXEMRMEE (M:E13) - BREES 5I415,445,00074 7T
%76,015,0008 e E THET H REFEREREEE(MHT14) ARYMZE - BEREE (M 13)ERER
EHEZFRBEE - M- T -_=F+-_A=+—0  EERAATEWHRMEESTEARREHRE T+ @
ARTRK - RBREHRE  AREMWREMEEER T _NF=A+=A8THNARARREFIAE LEX
NEIREHALAE o

RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 ' BFRMmMES26,210,0008THHE TH:E - XALKEESBEEAME BEAR
EHIsE13) ERE B R EYERBEE - RE-—F+=-B=+—H 5L EZEEENEE{IEE
19 -  BEEERAHEBETERTERRET—EAANEK - RBEZE-_TE_=F+-_A=+—HLFE -
ZEMES  FRAREBEBLCEEETESL HEEE64,0005 7T (FE7)
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Bt B AR MY RE

—E-=4+-A=+-A

u.@ﬁ%%%ﬁ&%ﬁ
FERTE S RIBAR S - B —BARGOE120KEH -

RBEHR - AEESFREZERAREEASAENENEZTELERRRATAOT

3EAR 567,760 532,780
4% 618 A 292,661 254,025
721218 B 18,814 29,030
HBiE1F 11,562 6,768

890,797 822,603

25. HMENRERETER

EIEUW A (HI5E28) 807 858
BHEE 31,646 53,851
H b e R 543,832 756,212
EErE R 500,902 634,596

1,077,187 1,445,517

# BHABKRAEFPHERMAASHEIFOR -

RZZE=Z=F—A—H A08[EHNAE32,483,0008 T - R=ZZF=_=F ' AHNABERD(ZT_=F : BINHETEAFE
MEEEYMAESKRMNBRZRD (T = —F : #BINFHK -

it Hi N FIRDFFIE
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26. PTEE®MIA

mHIINEE S A - = = 1,676

AEBER N ZHERPINES L)  NEIREAZRINERBIFE - ZSRPINES Y IEIEERREHE R -
BEBERRATENE NEE-ZE-=F+-A=1+—RH1LFE ' P EETET AN AT EEEE
%815,855,000/8 7T ( — & = 4 : 45,885,000/ 70) RIEFR R AR -

27. SERITREMEE

BRRAI=E
(%)
RE
IREEMN 6.83 2024 412,421 6.10 2023 274,842
HipsRiTER M EMEE 1.93-8.42 2024 2,126,718  0.56-7.51 2023 2,773,902
2,539,139 3,048,744
ERE
IREE 6.83 2025 549,894 6.10 2024-2025 961,947
HipsRiTER R EMEE 1.93-5.25 2025-2027 47,581  1.32-1.68 2024-2027 32,437
597,475 994,384
3,136,614 4,043,128
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—E-=4+-A=+-A

27. SEHRTREMEESE)

B
=420 2,539,139 3,048,744
E_4F 589,793 441,052
EFE=EhF(BEEEWE) 7,682 553,332
3,136,614 4,043,128
B3t

(@) AREEETRITERATINEB (ERHER

Iff

(i) MEBR - AEERPEREE T L RIEFEF - BREFE520,413,0008 (== =4 : 20,223,0007%8
M

P

S
JC
(i) RBMERR - NARIRERS £2,301,927,0008 (=T == : 2,931,266,000770) FI A Bl HER °
(b) ANEEREIEA2,734,917,000/8 T ( =8 = — 4 : 3,728,254,000/87T) * 19,590,000/ 7 ( = F = =4 : 20,744,000 7T )
$%382,107,000/8 L (ZF = =4 : 294,130,000 L) 2 RITREMEESBIAET((ET]) - HaB((HaBHRAR
¥R o

28. EIZEW A

Ui B 8 B TS AT A B B R 0 R WA (i) 41,729 43,483

maEs o (MsE25) (807) (858)

IETRENER D 40,922 42,625
BisE

(i) BEIERASE AR BERFEAER NS THBRRERBEERSHRAHER
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29. R
12

30.

EERA
2,000,000,000R% &R EI{E0. 178 7T 7 200,000 200,000

BEITRBUR A -
1,200,008,4450& (=Z = — 4 : 1,200,008,4454%)

HFIREEO0. 178 TS 120,001 120,001

B A SREN T &

(a)

& BT &

AARRBRETE((FE))  BNERAHAKERDEEEHERNAER2RERHIER N
B - ABNAERBEEBFEARAEZER(BEBIUINTES) AEEEMES AEEEYH
REHER  AEEEP - AAKBRHME  RAEIEMARMIEOAL - AEERRRAEE®
AARERREERATERASENERERXRFHERMNZ2RE

B ERBEE S AR BN ARTEBREHE TER T EERARF K ERITRMAZ30% © REMR
REABBASEEERSEERBASERBREMAIEZTORNZSHE - KARRTKE S
TIRM1% /R - BITRHBRZ EROBRERSKRRAEBRRASG L4tE -

AARREE TETBAR  T2ERRAWFE2EABRBARLERE - ARLBLIFRTESH
JE o tbSN  RMER2ERABRARARREEZERRABYIFATESTHRENEMHBEARLER
# - MAE RN BEAR R RN D ETRMN0.1%HAE(REAR B RORF L BHHKH B
% )#8¥#15,000,000/87C - RIZASEKLMRAERRAG LHE
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30. R ERENETEI(2)

(a)

BT Sl (g)

AERATRERBRERREA21AR - SAXMBTHRBARBRARLBRENER - IR
HERENTENRESET @ TREUVARLERER AR - WRNERE HBE B g+
FEHER -

BRENTEEHESETE  ETMSERNEERZME B RERMAAR B RNNERER LAY
HTHE  RNEZRLBRNAERSBEEXSMERRERATARBRMDEAFHETE &
(iR RRIBRDEEN&RSE

THRBARSEE - AREBELRARSSELSHIVE o AKE RIS ZH BB
B -

AR TR TRAE AMBR SN RASRE &R -

FA - ARAMERBEZ RO AT HBRE - TEBRELEREW -

THUBET IR TRFEA R ARITEAREHE

—EC-=F — ===
piip: ] DREFg
1TEE BREZE 1TfEE BB ESE
BRET RS TT
=g =g 1.48 31,976,000 1.48 33,512,000
281 1.48 (3,638,000) 1.48 (1,536,000)
r=E=ar—=E 1.48 28,338,000 1.48 31,976,000
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30. RPImENETEI2)
(a) MBIRHERTE|(#)
PSR4 HAK 4 5K 77 (6 B AR A RO 1 T /B RAT B AL T

—E-=F
BREEE TEE" 1TEH
BRET
164,400 1.48 2018511 H7H £202458H31H
514,400 1.48 2019511 A7H%£202458H31H
515,600 1.48 202011 H7H £202458H31H
13,572,800 1.48 202111878 £20245F8H31H
13,570,800 1.48 2022 11H57HZE202458H31H
28,338,000
prsl e g =
B S E 1IfEE" 17{FHB
ST
184,400 1.48 201811 H7HE2024F8H31H
534,400 1.48 201911 H7B 220248 A31H
538,400 1.48 2020%11 H7H&E2024%48H31H
15,360,400 1.48 2021511 H7BE2024F8H31H
15,358,400 1.48 2022F11H7B£2024%8A31H
31,976,000

* BRENTEEN EMRRARET - HEMARRRADEULE M

BE_ZT_=_F+-_A=+t—"BLEFE  £ATNESRM R EAERZBIRERM6,109,000/
TERDE MR I B B =R F

BE_Z_—_F+-_A=+—"HLEFE  AKERBEFERH MRZBREEIBRERIAS
2,276,000/ 7T

R|EBR - ARBIRIZEFBI%EH 28,338,000 M ARTTHBARE - (AR FAEAEHTROLD

2.4% ° REBEARBIRBEHERERE - 2EITEHK T BIRES EBEEINE1728,338,000l 0 A A 7] & il
fi% K2 1 A 7K 2,834,0005%8 T LA K2 B 15 % {839,106,00058 7T (FNKR 277 FA 2 AT ) ©
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30.

31.

32.

Bt B AR MY RE

== = HelhsE

R A0 SR B =T &l (8)

(b) A EEE=T S
BE-T—tFAATHBE BBFSHERQIBD KR 81 ZEEE]) EEZEN/GOE
YRERBRARBERRERNHERMZGERZEE  MAERSEER TERE  YHBRE/AN
SERHBLENERNLER » R>RSIGBAAME  MEeEAEEE - FPER - RBRO 2FB
HIMEFERE o

RZFZ=F+ZA=1+t—"0B BOHBBAETHIEARBRITEEARIAFAGH
354,345,7748 (ZZF Z =4 : 354,345,7748%) -

(N
RBEFERAEEARERGNESEREBESFE - MR BRRFS5M6AMGREEREEEK

BREAFEFEEZHFE2ENBLT
R B/ ER 2 AR RIMB A RFIERIINT

RIS R A ZBRER DL -

ELREMNBAR([ETEE]) 40.72% 40.72%
Mindforce & EFfE A &) ([ Mindforce £ |) 29% 29%

PETIFEHIRR ZAFERBR

ETEE (80,379) (29,297)
Mindforces & (20,675) (44,958)

KRS B HIHE S 2 REHEER -

FELEE 1,161,189 1,289,833
Mindforce 35,213 61,775
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32. BEEAFEHESZHFZENBLR @)
TRIRERBH REWBARZHBERNREE KSR SEDEMDABEBASE

Mindforce 5 E

TH T
s s

WA 2,352,848 567,448
FElE (2,550,243) (638,742)
KEZEE (197,395) (71,294)
AREFEHEMAY R (684,234) (125,559)
RBEE 2,392,350 353,713
EMBNEE 2,197,370 557,928
mBEE (1,701,532) (633,784)
EmMBEE (46,756) (156,355)
SRR & M= F 58 421,961 141,291
KEEHFTAR S REFE (368,219) (12,518)
BREGEHFAREREFE (34,135) (156,747)
BERBSEEYEIN, OB ) FE 19,607 (27,974)
EIEE Mindforce= &

FHEIT FH&T

T el

WA 2,785,604 827,851
lEsE (2,857,552) (982,879)
REEFEE (71,948) (155,028)
AFE2HEFAS BT (490,056) (202,932)
MBEE 2,949,123 514,759
IERBEE 2,530,650 654,880
mBAE (2,290,913) (799,668)
EmBEE (31,505) (156,424)
REEBRSHRSREFHE 600,215 19,263
WEESE,/ (FTA)REREFE 4,280 (10,928)
BMEEBAE ()RS REFE (362,597) 43,150
Re MRS FEYILINFEE 241,898 51,485
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33. ZERERERWE
(@) EEBIFREXRH

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

FR - AEBEREEIM( T - —F: HELHEYE)HETHNERREEENHEAEN
JEIR & 12N Il &8,785,000/8 L ( — & — —4F : 300,407,000/ 7T ) 58,008,000 0( — & — —
% 300,407,000 7T) Bt AEEERIEIR L N8,785,000/8 i E + EF777,0008 (=
T oF  E)RNFRERBEMNKIEA -

FA - HEDERF[ENE ZIERBEEMSTIA4,309,0008 T ARSI AHA T - =F+
“A=T-HZENEA - Be MEMEKFR -

HEZT-_—_F+-A=1T—RHLFE ' RRBE(MF5)TKE - FEEBTFRIREHER
A726,350,000 8 T(R_ZE_—F+_A=1T—Hit \EMENRREFER)  BRRRE
SRR A69,429,000 B TR LEE TR  BMELRBHEENEAEEEMESNBHERA
656,921,000/ ¢ °

F3 2023 EREREZERBRAT 126



R RSk

—E-=%+=A=+—H

33. MEBRERERMT®)
by MEITBELEZBEZ
—E-=4

TERITR B A S
&

R=—ZT=-=%—HA—H 266,277 4,043,128
BmEReRES (88,223) (831,207)
g 8,008 -
RATAR I (13,127) =
HEEW (28,250) —
FRERHRILF S 433 -
DEEKERSROBEMNFE (433) =
SN 5 (2,320) (75,307)
i e e e 142,365 3,136,614
o L o

AHRRIT R EME
.

TET

Rn—ZT=-Z=—F—H—H 1,997 4,852,654
BMERESREL (32,257) (736,231)
g 300,407 -
EME ) RIEF B 1,020 E
SEAKERSRNENFE (1,020) s
SNGE B (3,870) (73,295)
R=ZFZ=F+=—HA=+—~H” 266,277 4,043,128
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33.

34.

35.

36.

Bt B AR MY RE

—E-=4+-A=+-A

SERERERME S
(0 MENERSTE
HABSHEZNRER SR LEENT

& EE 2,453 4,163
EREEES 88,223 32,257
90,676 36,420

RAREE

RBESR » REBLBEEAMERKAEE -

iR
AEMPNRE R 2 SRREMT -

BF 44,625 11,242

Y NE N 208,554 82,162

1BEE A IR 253,179 93,404
BEALTRS

(a) BUFUBRREMBOAFANIZI - REBRFADEEEALET MRS

A THALNEER :

BEAN L (i) 142 146
BlKER ST A (i) 59 60
KA BIR A ([ ARFEL) (iii) 301 308
MEBL LT (iv) 62 63
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36. BAEALRZ(#)
(a) BRUHFFBHREMEBIFAHFLANRZI  REERNFAEEBFEALET NIRS -
(&
PaE

(i) BEXZLIRARAEEBYERENKR - BEDRBEAFMZITHENREREE BE_T_=F+_A=
T—RLEFE  AEBRSEXLTETIEREERE -

(ii) BXERERAAREEBYERENRE T - HEDRBEEMZ I BENRERETE - BE_T_=F+-A=
T—HIEFE  AREEEKFEEER IEMEERE

(i) ~ BEXLKLREKEEEIBRNENES - MEXBR L (RARBEZTH B K ERBR)  BRAXL T REKE
FEHRRENER - BEDREEHESAHENREXREE -BE T =F+-A=1+—HILFE ' £5H
BURAEERT LS RS B -

(iv) MEBREIA/ARFEZBYERENES - HEDRBEESTHBENREXEE -BE_T_=F1+_A
T—HIEFE  AREEREBRLER LEHEEHE

PREEALTRGITER ETRAVFIAETMER L AERFRFTEBERS -

(b)) AEEFBEEEAENHES(TERESME):

EHE B BT 7,500 9,136
& 8 B0 BN 2 = 784
MEEEE ABMNEEREE 7,500 9,920

EExMEerE— TRHIFERM BRRMEES -
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Bt B AR MY RE

Tty ey e (=

RERESNERMT A
RFEHR LM TABROREBMT

—EC=E
TREE

EERBRATE
LA 85 AR A SFARMEE

FHENEMEE BANREIRE
FRET TR

BERBEAHEFARMER

WA B P A — 25,236 25,236
JEUE 5508 2,486,447 = 2,486,447
Bt ABMNRE - Ze2 Kk

His IR IER R & E 79,848 = 79,848
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

EY:

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 143, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included

the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address

the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Assessment of inventory provision

As at 31 December 2023, the net carrying value of the
Group's inventories amounted to HK$1,538,625,000.
The assessment of inventory provision is based on the
estimated net realisable value of inventories, which
requires significant management judgements and
estimates. Management considers various factors,
including the conditions and ageing of inventories,
sales pattern and selling prices of inventories, market
demand and the Group’s future plan of usage and
sale of inventories. Management'’s provision assessment
involves a high level of judgements and estimates, and
is subject to uncertainty due to rapid changes of the
notebook and tablet computer market.

Related disclosures about inventories are included in
notes 3 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included, among others, evaluating
management’s assessment methodology based on the
Group’s circumstances, and evaluating the inputs and
assumptions applied by management in performing
the provision assessment by reviewing the ageing, the
historical usage and sales patterns, the post year-end
usage, sales and selling prices, of selected samples of
inventories.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2023, the net carrying amount
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment was
HK$5,679,602,000. These property, plant and
equipment relate to the manufacture and sale of
casings for notebook computer and handheld devices
cash-generating unit. Management assesses whether
there are any indicators of impairment for property,
plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
year, and performs impairment assessment when an
impairment indicator is identified. The impairment
assessment is based on the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit. Management'’s assessment process
involves significant judgements and estimates, including
the estimation of expected future cash flows and the
use of other assumptions, such as terminal growth
rate and discount rate applied, which are sensitive to
expected future market or economic conditions and the
cash-generating unit's actual performance.

Related disclosures about property, plant and equipment
are included in notes 3 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Report 2023

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included, among others, involving
our valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the
methodologies and key assumptions used by management
in the discounted cash flow forecasts, including discount
rate and terminal growth rate. We also compared the
forecasts prepared by management with the historical
performance of the cash-generating unit and the business
development plan.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Kwong Ka Yan.

.43

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

18 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
REVENUE 5 6,936,056 8,255,947
Cost of sales (6,428,556) (7,792,204)
Gross profit 507,500 463,743
Other income and gains 5 279,626 1,093,976
Selling and distribution expenses (145,996) (170,007)
Administrative expenses (518,044) (635,639)
Other expenses (75,122) (391,986)
Finance costs 6 (214,562) (121,573)
Share of loss of an associate (47) (7)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7 (166,645) 238,507
Income tax expense 10 (162,176) (180,404)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (328,821) 58,103
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (230,815) 172,149
Non-controlling interests (98,006) (114,046)
(328,821) 58,103
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 12
— Basic (HK cents) (27.3) 20.4
— Diluted (HK cents) (27.3) 20.4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (328,821) 58,103
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
Other comprehensive expenses that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (309,785) (1,091,711)
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon disposal
of a subsidiary (15,993) =
(325,778) (1,091,711)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Change in fair value 21 11,824 (5,429)
Income tax effect 16 (1,437) -
10,387 (5,429)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR,

NET OF TAX (315,391) (1,097,140)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR (644,212) (1,039,037)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company (530,656) (738,373)

Non-controlling interests (113,556) (300,664)

(644,212) (1,039,037)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2023

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 13 5,679,602 6,587,803
Right-of-use assets 14(a) 807,247 887,421
Deferred tax assets 16 7,102 14,210
Prepayments for acquisition of property, plant and

equipment 7,974 30,356
Investment in an associate 17 - 12,654
Equity investment designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income 21 25,236 13,489
Total non-current assets 6,527,161 7,545,933

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 18 1,538,625 2,193,695
Trade receivables 19 2,486,447 2,420,946
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 20 178,093 193,690
Pledged and restricted bank balances 22 111,876 102,659
Cash and cash equivalents 22 1,221,852 1,706,797

5,536,893 6,617,787
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 23 91,460 26,210
Total current assets 5,628,353 6,643,997

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and bills payables 24 890,797 822,603
Other payables and accruals 25 1,077,187 1,445,517
Lease liabilities 14(b) 133,100 244,513
Tax payable 39,189 51,245
Derivative financial instruments 26 - 1,676
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 27 2,539,139 3,048,744
Total current liabilities 4,679,412 5,614,298
NET CURRENT ASSETS 948,941 1,029,699
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,476,102 8,575,632

Annual Report 2023  Ju Teng International Holdings Limited 53



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

31 December 2023

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 27 597,475 994,384
Deferred income 28 40,922 42,625
Lease liabilities 14(b) 9,265 21,764
Deferred tax liabilities 16 71,648 73,572
Total non-current liabilities 719,310 1,132, 34405
Net assets 6,756,792 7,443,287
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Issued capital 29 120,001 120,001
Reserves 31 5,345,443 5,918,382
5,465,444 6,038,383
Non-controlling interests 1,291,348 1,404,904
Total equity 6,756,792 7,443,287
=
V) / L
Cheng Li-Yu Huang Kuo-Kuang
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2023

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Shares Employee
Share  heldunder  sharebased  Statutory  Exchange Non-
lsued  premium  shareaward  compensation  resenve  fluctuation  Retained  Fair value Other controling Total

Note  capital  account plan Tesere fund reseve profits  reseve  reserves Totol interests equity
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKY'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Notes
(Note 29)  Note (¢) Note (¢) Note(d  (a) (0 Note(d  Note(d  Note(d) Notes (o), (c)

At 1 January 2022 120001 187919 (145831) ST 50715 501609 5871491 4235 323963 6842133 1705568 8547701

Profit for the year 5 - - - - 172,149 - - 172149 (114046) 58103
Other comprehensive expenses for
the year:
Change in fair value of an equity
investment designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income, net of tax - - - - - - - 549 - (549 - (5,429
Bxchange differences on translation of

foreign operations - - - - - (905,093) - -

(905,003) (186,618) (1,091,711)

Total comprehensive income{expenses)

for the year - - - - - (905003 172,149 (5429) - (738373) (300664) (1,039,037)
Dividend received under

the share award plan - - 28,348 - - - - - - 28348 - B3
Share-based compensation arrangements 30 - - - 2276 - - - - -6 - 2216
Transfer from retained profits - - - -0 - (90 - - - - -
2021 final dividend - - - - - - (%,00) - - (%,001) - (%00)
At 31 December 2022 120001 187919 (717,483 60247 549742 (403424) 5918612 (1194) 323963 6038383 1404904 7,443,287
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Shares  Employee
Share  held under  share-based Statutory  Exchange Non-
Issuied  premium share award compensation reserve fluctuation Retained Fair value Other controlling  Total

Note capital  account plan reserve  fund  reserve  profits reserve  reserves  Totll  interests  equity
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Notes
(Note 29)  Note (c) Note () Note() (a) ()  Note(d Note(c) Note(c) Notes(h), (c)

At 1 January 2023 120001 187919 (117.483) 60247 549742 (403424) 5918612 (1194) 323963 6038383 1404904 7443287

Loss for the year - - - - -
Other comprehensive incomef{expenses)
for the year:
Change in fair value of an equity
investment designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income, net of tax - - - - - - - 10387 - 10387 - 10387
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - (20423) - -
Release of exchange fluctuation
reserve upon disposal of a
subsidiary - - - - - (15993 - - - (1599 - (1599

(230,815) - - (230815)  (98,006) (328,821)

(204235)  (15,550) (309,785)

Total comprehensive income/{expenses)

for the year - - - - - (31028 (230815 10387 - (530,656) (113556) (644.212)
Dividend received under
the share award plan - - 171 - - - - - - -

Transfer of employee share-based
compensation reserve upon the

forfeiture of share options 30 - - - (6,109) - - 6,109 - - - - -
Transfer from retained profits - - - - - (179 - - - - -
2022 final dividend - - - - - - (60,000) - - (60,000) - (60,000)
At 31 Decernber 2023 120001 187,919 (699,766) 54138 503916 (713,652) 5,589,732 9,193 313963 5465444 1,291,348 6,756,192
Notes:
(@) In accordance with the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “Chinese Mainland”), the Company'’s

subsidiaries established in the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve
fund. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the subsidiaries’ articles of association, the
statutory reserve fund may be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation issue by way of paid-up capital.

(b) The other reserves comprise capital reserve which represents profits of the Company’s subsidiaries capitalised during the prior
years and other capital reserve.

() These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$5,345,443,000 (2022: HK$5,918,382,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2023

HK$'000

2022
HK$'000

Profit/(loss) before tax (166,645) 238,507
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 6 214,562 121,573
Share of loss of an associate 17 47 7
Interest income 5 (28,167) (8,676)
Dividend income 5 (334) (705)
Write-off of long outstanding trade payables 5 - (827)
Write-off of long outstanding other payables and
accruals 5 (2,110) (728)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7 812,325 1,001,293
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7 21,825 23,803
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, net 7 2,344 (525,446)
Gain on modification of a lease 5 (7,375) -
Loss on disposal of non-current assets classified as held
for sale 7 964 -
Gain on deregistration of an associate (632) =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 5 (42,507) -
Gain on early termination of a lease (516) -
Impairment of goodwill 15 - 52,488
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 13 45,000 285,401
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade receivables 19 (1,574) 1,685
Write-off/(write-back) of trade receivables 7 4,729 (2,523)
Provision/(reversal of provision) for inventories, net 7 (40,518) 108,229
Recognition of subsidy income 33(a) - (69,429)
Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments, net 7 15,855 45,885
Equity-settled share option expenses 30(a) - 2,276
827,273 1,272,813
Decrease in inventories 638,479 116,871
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables (131,815) 1,599,469
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables 33(a) 14,904 149,301
Movement in derivative financial instruments (17,531) (40,725)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables 87,960 (433,985)
Decrease in other payables and accruals (451,192) (150,328)
Cash generated from operations 968,078 2,513,416
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 968,078 2,513,416
PRC income tax paid (66,389) (107,957)
PRC income tax refunded - 1,604
Overseas income tax refunded 2,047 -
Overseas income tax paid (3,353) (7,132)
Withholding tax paid (106,446) (20,456)
Interest received 28,167 8,676
Interest paid (224,049) (132,277)
Net cash flows from operating activities 598,055 2,255,874

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment (170,841) (516,032)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets 33(a) 15,518 95,113
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets classified as

held for sale 33(a) 20,376 -
Investment in an associate - (12,661)
Disposal of a subsidiary 26,514 -
Increase in pledged and restricted bank balances (9,217) (27,915)
Increase in prepayments for acquisition of property, plant

and equipment (7,974) (30,356)
Proceeds from deregistration of an associate 13,218 -
Dividends received 334 705
Net cash flows used in investing activities (112,072) (491,146)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank loans and other borrowings 2,647,346 5,287,678
Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings (3,478,553) (6,023,909)
Dividend paid (60,000) (96,001)
Dividend received under the share award plan 17,717 28,348
Principal portion of lease payments (88,223) (32,257)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (961,713) (836,141)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (475,730) 928,587
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,706,797 848,600
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (9,215) (70,390)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,221,852 1,706,797

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 22 1,221,852 1,706,797

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the consolidated
statement of cash flows 1,221,852 1,706,797
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Ju Teng International Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. During
the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in
the manufacture and sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices. The registered address of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P. O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Issued and Equity interest

Place of incorporation/ paid-up share/ attributable to
Company name registration and business HENENE] the Company  Principal activities

Best Alliance Holding Inc. * British Virgin Islands ("BVI")/ US$52,600,000 Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
The Republic of China
(The "ROC")
Giant Glory International Limited Samoa/ROC US$49,777,419 Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Everyday Computer Components (Suzhou) PRC US$52,500,000 100%  Manufacture and
Co., ltd. sale of casings
Suzhou Dazhi Communication Accessory PRC US$148,500,000 100%  Manufacture and
Co., ltd. sale of casings
Ju Teng (Neijiang) Communication Accessory PRC US$101,000,000 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. * sale of casings
Tri-Great International Limited Samoa/ROC US$1,000,000 Ordinary 100%  Sale of casings and

related materials

Gi Li Co., Ltd. ROC NT$105,000,000 Ordinary 100%  Sale of casings and
related materials

Grand Develop Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100%  Provision of general
administrative and
support services

Mindforce Holdings Limited (“Mindforce”) BVI/ROC US$75,101,000 Ordinary 71%  Investment holding
WIS Precision (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. * PRC 1US$25,000,000 71%  Manufacture and
sale of casings
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Issued and Equity interest

Place of incorporation/ paid-up share/ attributable to
Company name registration and business registered capital the Company  Principal activities

WIS Precision (Taizhou) Co., Ltd. * PRC US$69,800,000 71%  Manufacture and
sale of casings

Dynamic Apex Limited Macau MOP100,000 100%  Sale of casings and
related materials

Fullerton Ltd. Samoa/ROC US$31,749,800 Ordinary 71%  Investment holding and
sale of computer
equipment and
peripherals

Lian-Yi Precision (Zhongshan) Inc. * PRC US$33,400,000 71%  Manufacture and sale of

computer equipment
and peripherals

Wah Yuen Technology Holding Limited Mauritius/ROC US$261,758,240 Ordinary 59.28%  Investment holding
("Wah Yuen")
Hong Ya Technology Corp. ROC NT$475,577,800 Ordinary 59.28%  Manufacture and

sale of casings

Compal Precision Module China Holdings Ltd. Mauritius/ROC US$236,267,926 Ordinary 59.28%  Investment holding and
sale of casings and
related materials

Compal Precision Module (Jiangsu) Company PRC US$420,000,000 59.28%  Manufacture and
Limited * sale of casings
Compal Electronic Technology (Changging) PRC US$60,000,000 59.28%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. sale of casings
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Issued and Equity interest

Place of incorporation/ paid-up share/ attributable to
Company name registration and business registered capital the Company  Principal activities

Jiang Su Inoac Juteng Polymer Co., Ltd. * PRC US$6,000,000 81.46%  Manufacture and
sale of materials
Wujiang Dading Precision Mould Co., Ltd. * PRC US$80,000,000 100%  Manufacture and

sale of casings

Tasun (Chongaing) Electronic Technology PRC US$90,000,000 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. * sale of casings
Dongxu Juteng Electronic Material (Jurong) PRC US$1,000,000 51%  Manufacture and
Co. Ltd.* sale of materials
He Li Cheng Electronic Material (Chong Qing) ~ PRC US$700,000 51%  Manufacture and
Co. Ltd. * sale of materials
Juteng Electronic Technology (Taizhou) Co., Ltd. = PRC 1S$180,000,000 100%  Manufacture and
sale of casings
Ju Teng Electronic Technology (Vietnam) Limited ~ Vietnam US$22,090,000 71.5%  Manufacture and
sale of casings

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law
A Directly held by the Company

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected

the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 29 January 2023, the Group disposed of its entire interest in Ju Teng Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Limited
("Ju Teng Electronics (Shanghai)”), an indirectly held wholly-owned subsidiary, to an independent third party
for a cash consideration of HK$26,514,000.

2023
HK$'000

Exchange fluctuation reserve (15,993)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 42,507
Total consideration 26,514
Satisfied by:

Cash 26,514

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of Ju Teng Electronics
(Shanghai) is as follows:

2023
HK$'000

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary 26,514

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments
and an equity investment designated at fair value through other comprehensive income which have
been measured at fair value. Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further explained in note 2.4. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Annual Report 2023  Ju Teng International Holdings Limited 63



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

2.

64

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. When the Company.
has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(a) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair
value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's
financial statements.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising

from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group are
described below:

(a)

(@)

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed the
material accounting policy information in note 2 to the financial statements. The amendments
did not have any impact on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the
Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since
the Group’s approach and policy align with the amendments, the amendments had no impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,
such as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

2.

66

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

2.3

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development. The amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for the
affected entities to help users of the financial statements better understand the entities’ exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes, including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar Two income
taxes separately in the periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of known
or reasonably estimable information of their exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in
which the legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively.

The Group has not yet applied the temporary exception during the current year because the
entities comprising the Group are operating in jurisdictions in which the Pillar Two tax law has
not yet been enacted or substantively enacted. The Group will disclose known or reasonably
estimable information related to its exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in the consolidated
financial statements by the time when the Pillar Two tax law has been enacted or substantively
enacted and will disclose separately the current tax expense or income related to Pillar Two
income taxes when it is in effect.

Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these financial statements. The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when
they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)'4
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)'4
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements’
and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

A woN -

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current,
including what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist at the
end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is itself
accounted for as an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its classification. The
2022 Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Additional disclosures are required for non-current liabilities
that are subject to the entity complying with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments shall be applied retrospectively with early application permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments,
and vice versa.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these revised HKFRSs upon their
initial application but is not yet in a position to state whether these revised HKFRSs would have any
significant impact on its financial performance and financial position.

Material Accounting Policies

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest of generally not less than 20% of
the equity voting rights and over which it has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of an associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
an associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in an associate.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other case, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over
the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets
includes an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives
in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and equity investment at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in
use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of the items
of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms or 5 to 10 years
Machinery 5 to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset
must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of such assets and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and
fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment classified as held for sale are not depreciated.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 50 years
Properties 1 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e. g., a change to future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of office
properties and equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that are considered to be
of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when there is a lease modification)
each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Chinese Mainland are required to participate
in central pension schemes operated by the relevant government authorities. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension schemes.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees
employed by the Group’s subsidiary in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme under the Labor Pension
Act (the “Act”) for its employees employed by the Group’s subsidiary in the ROC. Based on the Act,
the Group’s monthly contribution to individual pension accounts of employees covered by the defined
contribution plan is at 6% of monthly salaries and wages. The funds are deposited in individual labour
pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance.
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2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes and a share award plan. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer, further details
of which are given in note 30 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the
grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part
of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an equity-settled
award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of earnings per share.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that approximate to those
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences are attributable to non-
controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.

Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person

(i) has control, or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii)  is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: (continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity
investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. This category
includes derivative instruments.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. The Group considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 90 days past due. The Group has rebutted the 30 days past due
presumption of significant increase in credit risk based on reasonable and supportable information,
including the Group's credit risk control practices and the historical recovery rate of contractual payments
over 30 days past due. However, the Group may also consider a significant increase in credit risk
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is less likely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 120 days past due.
The Group has rebutted the 90 days past due presumption of default based on reasonable and
supportable information, including the Group’s credit risk control practices and the historical recovery
rate of financial assets over 90 days past due. However, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, lease liabilities, derivative financial instrument and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Gains
or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any interest charged
on these financial liabilities.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled,
or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement
of profit or loss.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the Company or the Group (treasury shares)
are recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and held
for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Government grants (continued)

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods or services is transferred to
the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further details are given in note 13
to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast market conditions (such as global shipments of personal computers and gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates, forecast market conditions and ECLs
is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast economic
conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade receivables is disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group and makes provision against obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for sale or use. Management estimates the
net realisable value for inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review at the end of each reporting period and makes provision against
obsolete and slow-moving items. Management considers various factors, including the conditions and ageing
of inventories, sales pattern and selling prices of inventories, market demand and the Group’s future plan of
usage and sale of inventories. Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.

The identification of obsolete and slow-moving inventory items requires the use of judgements and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact on the carrying
values of inventories and the write-down of inventories recognised in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed. The carrying amount of inventories carried as assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023 was HK$1,538,625,000 (2022: HK$2,193,695,000), details of
which are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and has developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of the
other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.

Annual Report 2023  Ju Teng International Holdings Limited 89



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Withholding taxes

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises in Chinese Mainland. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends to be distributed by those subsidiaries established in Chinese
Mainland in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors have made assessment based
on factors which include the dividend policy and the level of capital and working capital required for the
Group's operations in the foreseeable future.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of casings for notebook computer
and handheld devices. For management purposes, the Group operates in one business unit based on its casing
products, and has one reportable operating segment.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

(i) Revenue from external customers:
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong 6,495,182 7,942,911
Others 440,874 313,036
Total Revenue 6,936,056 8,255,947

The revenue information above is based on the locations where the products are delivered to the
customers.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, except for the revenue from external
customers in the PRC, the Group’s revenue derived from each of other locations was less than 10%
of the Group's revenue. Comparative figures have been restated to group the revenue from external
customers of other locations into “Others”.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information (continued)

(ii) Non-current assets:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong 6,031,433 7,065,638
The Socialist Republic of Vietnam 307,987 272,034
The ROC 152,973 164,014
Others 2,430 16,548
Total non-current assets 6,494,823 7,518,234

The non-current asset information above, excluding an equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets, is based on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenues of approximately HK$1,659,793,000, HK$1,441,042,000, HK$1,033,489,000, HK$793,395,000
and HK$745,026,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 were derived from sales to five major groups of
customers, the revenue from each of which accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

Revenues of approximately HK$1,933,994,000, HK$1,728,715,000, HK$1,400,030,000 and HK$1,064,670,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022 were derived from sales to four major groups of customers, the revenue
from each of which accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of casings for notebook computer
and handheld devices 6,936,056 8,255,947
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Geographical markets

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong 6,495,182 7,942,911
Others 440,874 313,036
6,936,056 8,255,947

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time 6,936,056 8,255,947

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue recognised that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
Sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld
devices 53,851 32,483

(i) Performance obligation

Sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within
60 to 120 days from delivery.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued
2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Other income and gains

Interest income 28,167 8,676
Subsidy income* 38,268 121,471
Compensation income 23,054 11,075
Dividend income 334 705
Gross rental income 22,803 26,147
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables 1,574 -
Write-back of trade receivables - 2,523
Write-off of long outstanding trade payables - 827
Write-off of long outstanding other payables and accruals 2,110 728
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets, net” - 525,446
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 42,507 -
Gain on modification of a lease 7,375 -
Foreign exchange gains, net 111,780 394,900
Others 1,654 1,478
Total other income and gains 279,626 1,093,976

& Various government subsidies have been received for enterprises engaged in businesses in Chinese Mainland for promoting

the manufacturing industry. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, a government subsidy of approximately HK$73,463,000 for the Group’s relocation of certain
production plants in Suzhou, the PRC, due to the urban planning (the “Relocation”), was recognised as subsidy income
upon completion of the Relocation during that year.

&l For the year ended 31 December 2022, pursuant to the Relocation, the Group disposed of certain of its items of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in Suzhou and government compensation income of approximately
HK$559,223,000, net of the carrying amounts of the items of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
surrendered by the Group, was recognised as gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets upon completion of the Relocation during that year.
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FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of the Group’s finance costs is as follows:

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings 223,616 131,257
Interest on lease liabilities 433 1,020
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss 224,049 132,277
Less: Interest capitalised (9,487) (10,704)
214,562 1211572
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
Notes 2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost of inventories sold* 6,428,556 7,792,204
Auditor’s remuneration 4,380 4k ZJ5(0)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 1 (42,507) —
Gain on deregistration of an associate 17 (632) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 812,325 1,001,293
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14(a) 21,825 23,803
Lease payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities 14(c) 2,020 3,143
Provision/(reversal of provision) for inventories, net™ (40,518) 108,229
Impairment of goodwill™™ 15 - 52,488
Impairment of property, plant and equipment™” 13 45,000 285,401
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade
receivables™” 19 (1,574) 1,685
Write-off/(write-back) of trade receivables™* 4,729 (2,523)
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’
remuneration — note 8):
Wages and salaries, bonuses, allowances and
welfare 1,724,693 2,315,635
Equity-settled share option expenses - 1,979
Pension scheme contributions (defined
contribution scheme)™*** 131,052 163,193
1,855,745 2,480,807
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (continued)

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Gross rental income on owner-occupied properties
and machinery (22,803) (26,147)
Less: Direct operating expenses arising from rental-

earning owner-occupied properties and
machinery 4,421 4,813

Net rental income (18,382) (21,334)

Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, plant

and equipment and right-of-use assets, net* 2,344 (525,446)
Loss on disposal of non-current assets classified as

held for sale™" 964 -
Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments,

et

Realised losses 15,855 40,725

Unrealised losses - 5,160
Foreign exchange gains, net** (111,780) (394,900)

* %k

* %k

*kkk

kkkkk

##

Cost of inventories sold includes HK$1,304,926,000 (2022: HK$3,412,262,000) relating to depreciation, employee benefit
expense, and provision/(reversal of provision) for inventories, net, which are also included in the total amounts disclosed
above for each of these types of expenses.

Included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Included in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Write-off of trade receivables and impairment of trade receivables are included in “Other expenses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Write-back of trade receivables and reversal of impairment of trade receivables

are included in “Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, net, is included in “Other income
and gains” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and

equipment is included in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains, net, included in “Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”), section 383 (1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fees 1,188 781
Other emoluments:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,511 6,208

Performance related bonuses 402 350

Share-based payments - 297

Pension scheme contributions 34 35

5,947 6,890

7,135 74671

Certain directors were granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair
values of such options, which have been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
were determined as at the date of grant and the amounts included in the financial statements for the prior
year are included in the above directors’ and chief executive's remuneration disclosures.

96 Ju Teng International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees and share-based payment expenses paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year were as follows:

2023
Share-based Total
Name of director Fees payments remuneration
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
Mr. Cherng Chia-Jiun 198 - 198
Mr. Tsai Wen-Yu 198 - 198
Mr. Yip Wai Ming 198 - 198
Mr. Yuen Chi Ho 198 - 198
792 - 792

2022
Share-based Total
Name of director Fees payments remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mr. Cherng Chia-Jiun 198 19 217
Mr. Tsai Wen-Yu 198 19 217
Mr. Yip Wai Ming 198 19 217
Mr. Yuen Chi Ho* 14 - 14
608 57 665

# On 6 December 2022, Mr. Yuen Chi Ho was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company.

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors during the year
(2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (continued)
(b)  Executive directors, a non-executive director and the chief executive

Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related  Share-based scheme Total
Name of director Fees in kind bonuses payments contributions remuneration
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
2023
Executive directors:
Mr. Cheng Li-Yu - 801 120 - - 9221
Mr. Huang Kuo-Kuang - 1,016 - - 16 1,032
Mr. Chiu Hui-Chin 198 - - - - 198
Mr. Lin Feng-Chieh - 1,879 282 - - 2,161
Mr. Tsui Yung Kwok - 1,815 - - 18 1,833
Non-executive director:
Mr. Cheng Li-Yen 198 - - - - 198
3% 5,511 402 - 34 6,343

Name of director

2022
Executive directors:

Salaries,
allowances

and benefits
Fees in kind
HK$'000 HK$'000

Performance
related
bonuses
HK$'000

Share-based
payments
HK$'000

Pension
scheme
contributions
HK$'000

Total
remuneration
HK$'000

Mr. Cheng Li-Yu" - 821 68 - - 889
Mr. Huang Kuo-Kuang - 909 - 64 17 990
Mr. Chiu Hui-Chin” 157 778 - 22 - 957
Mr. Lin Feng-Chieh - 1,880 282 90 - 2,252
Mr. Tsui Yung Kwok - 1,820 - 64 18 1,902
Non-executive director:

Mr. Cheng Li-Yen™ 16 - - - - 16

173 6,208 350 240 35 7,006
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8.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)  Executive directors, a non-executive director and the chief executive (continued)

i On 16 March 2022, Mr. Chiu Hui-Chin ceased to be the chief executive officer of the Company and his annual
salary was adjusted from HK$3,731,000 to HK$198,000; and Mr. Cheng Li-Yu was appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company.

2 On 16 March 2022, Mr. Cheng Li-Yen was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included three (2022: two) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
two (2022: three) highest paid employees who are neither directors nor chief executive of the Company are
as follows:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,242 2,070
Performance related bonuses 1,482 1,761
Equity-settled share option expenses - 405
Pension scheme contributions 37 48
2,761 4,284

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

2023 2022

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1

2 3

Share options were granted under the share option scheme of the Company to the non-director and non-
chief executive, highest paid employees in respect of their services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amounts included in the financial statements for the current and prior years are included in the
above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

10.

100

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group did not have any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year (2022: Nil). Taxes on assessable profits have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and

practices in respect thereof.

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Provision for the year:
Current — The PRC, excluding Hong Kong
Charge for the year 162,464 103,600
Underprovision in prior years 4,916 18,756
Current — Overseas
Charge for the year 18,754 13,465
Qverprovision in prior years (27,469) (20,373)
Deferred tax (note 16) 3,511 64,956
Total tax charge for the year 162,176 180,404

Ju Teng International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



10.

INCOME TAX (continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates, ranging
from 12% to 25% (2022: 12% to 25%), for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled, to the tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rates is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

2023
The PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong
and
Hong Kong Macau Macau Overseas Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit/(loss) before tax (18,228) 25,614 (47,357) (126,674) (166,645)
Tax at the statutory tax rate (3,008) 3,073 (11,886) (25,320) (37,141)
Preferential tax rates - - (26,147) - (26,147)
Effect of withholding tax at
10% on the distributed
profits of PRC subsidiaries - - 106,446 - 106,446
Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous
periods - - 4,916 (27,469) (22,553)
Income not subject to tax (347) - (13,086) (13,563) (26,996)
Expenses not deductible for tax 3,355 - 23,943 54,563 81,861
Tax losses not recognised - - 88,809 - 88,809
Others - - (2,103) - (2,103)
Tax charge/(credit) at the
Group's effective rate - 3,073 170,892 (11,789) 162,176
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

2022

The PRC,

excluding

Hong Kong

and
Hong Kong Macau \WEIE] Overseas Total
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit/(loss) before tax (16,688) 7,869 292,714 (45,388) 238,507
Tax at the statutory tax rate (2,754) 945 73,179 (9,245) 62,125
Preferential tax rates - - (21,262) - (21,262)

Effect of withholding tax at

10% on the distributed profit

of a PRC subsidiary - - 3,916 - 3,916
Effect of withholding tax at

12% on the distributable

profit of a Macau subsidiary - 9,790 - - 9,790
Effect of withholding tax at
10% on capital gain - - 16,540 - 16,540

Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous

periods - - 18,756 (20,373) (1,617)
Income not subject to tax (104) - (38,580) (7,261) (45,945)
Expenses not deductible for tax 2,858 - 112,985 29,933 145,776
Tax losses not recognised - - 50,251 - 50,251
Tax losses utilised from prior

periods - - (38,285) - (38,285)
Temporary differences not

recognised - - - 38 38
Others - - (923) - (923)

Tax charge/(credit) at the
Group's effective rate - 10,735 176,577 (6,908) 180,404
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10.

11.

12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

INCOME TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law being effective on 1 January 2008, the income tax is unified
at 25% for all enterprises in Chinese Mainland.

According to Announcement No. 23 [2020] of the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation Administration and
the National Development and Reform Commission issued in April 2020, enterprises set up in the western
region in the PRC with major businesses falling within the Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in the Western
Region are entitled to a reduced corporate income tax (“CIT") rate of 15%.

Juteng (Neijiang) Communication Accessory Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary of the Company in the Sichuan
province, and Tasun (Chongging) Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. and Compal Electronic Technology (Chongging)
Co., Ltd., which are subsidiaries of the Company in the Chongging city, were entitled to enjoy the 15% CIT
preferential rate as their major businesses fall within the Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in the Western
Region.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% of the estimated assessable profit for a subsidiary in Macau.

DIVIDENDS
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
Proposed final — Nil (2022: HK5 cents per ordinary share) - 60,000

The board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2023.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss (2022: earnings) per share amounts is based on the loss for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Company of HK$230,815,000 (2022: profit of HK$172,149,000) and the weighted
average number of 845,662,671 (2022: 845,662,671) ordinary shares in issue excluding shares held under
the share award plan during the year.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no adjustment have been made to the basic earnings/

(loss) per share amounts presented in respect of a dilution as the impact of share options outstanding had
no dilutive effect on the basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts presented.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold and office Motor  Construction

buildings  improvements Machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

31 December 2023

At 1 January 2023:
Cost 4,757,061 9,214 9,402,296 1,487,111 13311 323,076 15,992,729
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (1,905,588) (4201) (6019949 (1,465,915 (9,273) - (9,404,926)
Net carrying amount 2,851,473 5,013 3,382,341 21,856 4,038 323,076 6,587,803

At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated

depreciation and impairment 2,851,473 5,013 3,382,347 21,856 4,038 323,076 6,587,803
Additions 11,610 - 37,503 19,534 3,340 138,697 210,684
Transfers 20,600 - 161,464 64,575 1,644 (248,283) -
Disposalsfwrite-off - - (2,991) (5,699) (350) (8,822) (17,862)
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale

(note 23) (76,015) - - - - - (76,015)
Impairment (note 7) - - (44,644) (250) (106) - (45,000)
Depreciation provided during the year

(note 7) (206,084) (770) (529,791) (74371) (1,309) - (812,325)
Exchange realignment (67,859) 68 (83,270) (9,485) (129) (7,008) (167,683)

At 31 December 2023, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment 2,533,725 4311 2,920,618 16,160 7,128 197,660 5,679,602

At 31 December 2023;

Cost 4,375,252 9,351 8,980,455 1,478,386 15,562 197,660 15,056,666
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (1,841,527) (50400  (6,059,837) (1,462,226) (8,434) - (9,377,064)
Net carrying amount 2,533,125 4311 2,920,618 16,160 7,128 197,660 5,679,602
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

Furniture,
fixtures

Land and Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements Machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

31 December 2022

At 1 January 2022:

Cost 4,981,612 9,957 10,129,750 1,715,443 14,083 806,501 17,657,346
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (2,152,384) (3,686) (5,849,136)  (1,472,923) (9,355) - (9,487,484)
Net carrying amount 2,829,228 6,271 4,280,614 242,520 4,728 806,501 8,169,862

At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated

depreciation and impairment 2,829,228 6,271 4,280,614 242,520 4,728 806,501 8,169,362
Additions 4,486 Al 58,228 23370 710 483,176 570,051
Transfers 586,258 - 241148 36,250 351 (864,007) -
Disposals/write-off (114,188) - (27,561) (15,663) (94) (52,168) (209,674)
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale

(note 23) - - (26,202) 8) - - (26,210)
Impairment (note 7) - - (283,561) (1,555) (285) - (285,401)
Depreciation provided during the year

(note 7) (221,841) (787) (565,349) (212,265) (1,051) - (1,001,293)
Exchange realignment (232.470) (492) (294,970) (50,793) (381) (50,426) (629,532)

At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment 2,851,473 5,013 3,382,347 21,856 4,038 323,076 6,587,303

At 31 December 2022;

Cost 4,757,061 9,214 9,402,29 1,487,771 13311 323,076 15,992,729
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (1,905,588) (4201) (6019949 (1,465915) (9.273) - (9,404,926)
Net carrying amount 2,851,473 5,013 3,382,347 21,856 4,038 323,076 6,587,803
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

13.

106

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s land and buildings with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$20,413,000 (2022: HK$20,223,000) situated in the ROC were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 27).

As at 31 December 2023, the application of property ownership certificates for certain buildings with a net
book value of HK$37,948,000 (2022: HK$41,280,000) was still in progress. In the opinion of the directors,
the risk of the Group for not being able to obtain the legal titles for the relevant buildings is low and the
Group will continue to pursue and discuss with the Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC for the final
settlement and complete the ownership registration of the buildings.

In view of the downturn in operating results of the manufacture and sale of casings for notebook computer
and handheld devices cash-generating unit (the “CGU") for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022, management performed an impairment assessment on the recoverable amount of the CGU
at 31 December. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on a five-year financial forecast approved by management. The pre-tax
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 14% (2022: 13%). Based on management’s assessment,
impairment losses of HK$45,000,000 (2022: HK$240,512,000) were recognised to write down the carrying
amounts of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to their aggregate recoverable amounts
of HK$6,486,849,000 (2022: HK$7,475,224,000) as at 31 December 2023. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the goodwill of HK$52,488,000 allocated to the CGU was fully impaired as at 31 December 2022
(note 15).

On 22 November 2023, the Group entered into three agreements with Wujiang Economic and Technological
Development Zone Management Committee (5 LA 115 2 % B2 ZE 8 §) and Huaying Shixun (Wujiang)
Co., Ltd. GERRARF(RIT) B R A 7)) (the “Agreements”) for disposal of certain land and property in relation to
land resumption demanded by the local government authority in Suzhou (the “Disposal for Land Resumption”).
The recoverable amounts of these leasehold lands and buildings of the Group have been determined at the lower
of their fair value less cost of disposal based on the aggregate amount of considerations in the Agreements
and their carrying values. These leasehold lands and buildings of the Group in Suzhou with carrying values
of HK$15,445,000 (note 14) and HK$76,015,000, respectively, were transferred from right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment to non-current assets held for sale. The Disposal for Land Resumption
constitutes a major transaction of the Company. Further details of the Disposal for Land Resumption were
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 30 January 2024. Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, the Disposal for Land Resumption was approved by shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 13 March 2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, after the Relocation (note 5), certain items of machinery and
furniture and fixtures of the Group’s factories in Suzhou with an aggregate carrying value of HK$71,099,000
were identified by management and included in a plan to sell. These assets were used in the manufacture and
sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices. The recoverable amounts of these assets have
been determined on their fair value less cost of disposal based on purchase prices offered by independent
third parties, and an impairment loss of HK$44,889,000 was recognised as “Other expenses” in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2022. The net carrying values of these assets of HK$26,210,000 were
transferred from property, plant and equipment to non-current assets held for sale as at 31 December 2022.
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14.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for certain of its properties, machinery, motor vehicles and office equipment
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners
with lease periods of 50 years. Leases of properties generally have lease terms between 2 months and 60
months (2022: between 3 months and 60 months), while motor vehicles generally have lease terms of 3 years.
Machinery and office equipment generally have lease terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually of

low value, and therefore these lease payments are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the movements during the year are as
follows:

Leasehold Motor
land Properties vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 1 January 2022 683,913 1,639 273 685,825
Additions 278,396 22,011 - 300,407
Disposals (16,914) - - (16,914)
Depreciation charge (note 7) (18,137) (5,565) (1071) (23,803)
Exchange realignment (58,038) (36) (20) (58,094)

As at 31 December 2022 and

1 January 2023 869,220 18,049 152 887,421
Additions 8,785 - - 8,785
Transfer to non-current assets

held for sale (note 23) (15,445) - - (15,445)
Early termination - (12,611) - (12,611)
Lease modification (20,875) - - (20,875)
Depreciation charge (note 7) (19,622) (2,107) (96) (21,825)
Exchange realignment (17,924) (280) 1 (18,203)
As at 31 December 2023 804,139 3,051 57 807,247
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b)  Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
At 1 January 266,277 1,997
New leases 8,008 300,407
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 433 1,020
Early termination (13,127) -
Lease modification (28,250) -
Payments (88,656) (33,277)
Exchange realignment (2,320) (3,870)
At 31 December 142,365 266,277
Analysed into:
Current portion 133,100 244,513
Non-current portion 9,265 21,764

Analysed into:

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

Lease liabilities repayable:

Within one year 133,100 244,513
In the second year 1,206 5,223
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 277 8,574
Beyond five years 7,782 7,967

142,365 266,277

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(©)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$’000

Interest on lease liabilities 433 1,020

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 21,825 23,803

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in

administrative expenses) 1,970 3,105
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in

administrative expenses) 50 38

Gain on modification of a lease (7.375) -

Gain on early termination of a lease (516) -

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 16,387 27,966

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 33(c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases part of its factory and machinery under operating lease arrangements. The terms of
the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during
the year was HK$22,803,000 (2022: HK$26,147,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$’000

Within one year 22,526 22,751
After one year but within two years 18,007 21,670
After two years but within three years 18,524 19,242
After three years but within four years 18,497 19,773
After four years but within five years 18,824 19,745
After five years 51,940 73,119
148,318 176,300
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

15.

110

GOODWILL

HK$'000
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2022 52,488
Impairment during the year (note 7) (52,488)
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2022 -
At 31 December 2022:
Cost 52,488
Accumulated impairment (52,488)

Net carrying amount -

Impairment testing of goodwiill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations was allocated to the manufacture and sale of casings for
notebook computer and handheld devices cash-generating unit for impairment testing.

As at 31 December 2022, the recoverable amount of the manufacture and sale of casings for notebook
computer and handheld devices cash-generating unit had been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on a five-year financial forecast approved by management. The pre-tax
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 13% and cash flows beyond the five-year period were
extrapolated using a growth rate of 2%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the manufacture and sale of casings for notebook
computer and handheld devices cash-generating unit as at 31 December 2022. The following describes each
key assumption on which management had based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill:

Forecasted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value assigned to the forecasted gross margins was
the average gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the forecast year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used was before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Based on management’s assessment, an impairment loss of HK$52,488,000 was recognised to profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2022 to fully impair the goodwill as at 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax assets

Losses available Impairment
for offsetting of property,

against future  Government Lease plant and
taxable profits subsidies liabilities equipment Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Gross deferred tax assets at

1 January 2022 61,525 8,281 - - 69,806
Deferred tax credited/(charged)

to the statement of profit or

loss during the year (note 10) (58,567) (148) 3,413 3,606 (51,696)
Exchange realignment (2,958) (724) (106) (112) (3,900)

Gross deferred tax assets at

31 December 2022 and

1 January 2023 - 7,409 3,307 3,494 14,210
Deferred tax charged to the

statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 10) - (141) (3,240) (3,423) (6,804)
Exchange realignment - (166) (67) (71) (304)

Gross deferred tax assets at
31 December 2023 - 7,102 - - 7,102

The Group had tax losses arising in Chinese Mainland of approximately HK$1,191,178,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: HK$866,050,000) that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the subsidiaries in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

16.

112

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value
adjustments arising
from revaluation of

Fair value an equity investment

adjustments designated at fair
arising from value through other
acquisition of comprehensive Withholding Right-of-use
subsidiaries income tax assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Gross deferred tax liabilities at

1 January 2022 450 = 60,000 - 60,450
Deferred tax charged to the statement of

profit or loss during the year (note 10) - - 9,790 3,470 13,260
Exchange realignment - - - (138) (138)

Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31

December 2022 and 1 January 2023 450 - 69,790 3,332 73,572
Deferred tax credited to the statement of

profit or loss during the year (note 10) - - - (3.293) (3,293)
Deferred tax charged to equity during the

year (note 10) - 1,437 - - 1,437
Exchange realignment (29) - - (39) (68)

Gross deferred tax liabilities at
31 December 2023 421 1,437 69,790 - 71,648

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in Chinese Mainland. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately HK$2,073,966,000 (2022:
HK$3,272,208,000) as at 31 December 2023. In the opinion of the directors, the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and, accordingly, the Group has taken into consideration,
among others, the probability the temporary difference being reversed in the foreseeable future, and recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable in the foreseeable future on distribution of unremitted earnings
by the Company’s subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland in respect of earnings generated.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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18.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
Share of net assets - 12,654

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Percentage of
Place of ownership interest
Particulars of incorporation attributable to Principal

Company name issued shares held and business the Group activity

Leading Profit Holding Limited Ordinary shares Seychelles/ 0% Investment
("Leading Profit") The ROC (2022: 49%) holding

The Group's shareholding in an associate comprises equity shares held through a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group’s associate that is not individually material:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Share of the associate’s loss for the year (47) (7)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s investment in the

associate - 12,654

During the year, the amount of capital injection to Leading Profit was refunded to the Group upon its
deregistration, resulting in a gain of HK$632,000.

INVENTORIES
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
Production materials 128,281 224,847
Work in progress 541,370 677,584
Finished goods 739,003 1,081,499
Moulds and consumable tools 129,971 209,765
1,538,625 2,193,695
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$000

Trade receivables 2,490,039 2,426,112
Impairment (3,592) (5,166)
2,486,447 2,420,946

The general credit terms of the Group range from 60 days to 120 days. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within 3 months 1,440,992 1,295,835
4 to 6 months 1,019,371 1,064,992
7 to 12 months 26,084 60,119
2,486,447 2,420,946

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

At beginning of year 5,166 3,481
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) (note 7) (1,574) 1,685
At end of year 3,592 5,166

As at 31 December 2023, the decrease in loss allowance was due to the decrease in trade receivables which
were past due for 4 to 6 months and 7 to 12 months.

As at 31 December 2022, the increase in loss allowance was due to the increase in trade receivables which
were past due for 7 to 12 months.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a
provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

Past due

1to 3 4to 6 7 to 12
Current months months months

Expected credit loss rate 0.04% 0.01% 5.33% 35.73% 0.14%
Gross carrying amount

(HK$'000) 2,169,308 304,038 10,760 5,933 2,490,039
ECLs (HK$'000) 868 30 574 2,120 3,592

As at 31 December 2022

Past due

1to3 4 to0 6 7 to 12
Current months months months

Expected credit loss rate 0.05% 0.02% 6.23% 44.92% 0.21%
Gross carrying amount

(HK$'000) 1,832,492 565,770 21,642 6,208 2,426,112
ECLs (HK$'000) 916 113 1,348 2,789 5,166

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Prepayments 50,282 59,345
Deposits and other receivables 127,811 134,345
178,093 193,690
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20.

21.

116

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history
of default and past due amounts. The ECLs are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions, as appropriate. As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the ECLs
were assessed to be minimal.

EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Overseas listed equity investment, at fair value
Paragon Technologies Co., Ltd. 25,236 13,489

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
as the Group considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the gross profit in respect of the Group’s equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income recognised in other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$11,824,000 (2022: Loss of HK$5,429,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received a dividend in the amounts of HK$334,000
(2022: HK$705,000) from Paragon Technologies Co., Ltd.

In the opinion of the directors, the equity investment designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income is not expected to be realised within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,

the investment is classified as a non-current asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The market value of the Group’s listed equity investment at the date of approval of these financial statements
was approximately HK$22,362,000.
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23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES
2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

Cash and bank balances, including time deposits with original

maturity less than 3 months 1,333,728 1,809,456
Less: Pledged and restricted bank balances (111,876) (102,659)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,221,852 1,706,797

Renminbi (“RMB”) is not a freely convertible currency in Chinese Mainland and the remittance of funds out
of Chinese Mainland is subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC government. Companies
incorporated in the ROC are subject to certain controls in the remittance of funds out of the ROC up to a
certain limit for each calendar year. Vietnamese Dong is not a freely convertible currency in Vietnam under
the Law on Foreign Investment in Vietnam. At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
which were subject to exchange and/or remittance restrictions in Chinese Mainland, the ROC or Vietnam
amounted to approximately HK$495,596,000 (2022: HK$402,897,000).

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Pursuant to the Disposal for Land Resumption (note 13), certain leasehold lands and buildings with carrying
values of HK$15,445,000 and HK$76,015,000, respectively, were transferred from right-of-use assets (note
14) and property, plant and equipment (note 13) to non-current assets held for sale during the year ended 31
December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, in the opinion of the directors, the Disposal for Land Resumption
was expected to be completed within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Subsequent to the
end of the reporting period, the Disposal for Land Resumption was approved by shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 13 March 2024.

As at 31 December 2022, certain items of machinery and furniture and fixtures at an aggregate carrying
value of HK$26,210,000 were transferred from property, plant and equipment (note 13) to non-current assets
held for sale. As at 31 December 2022, negotiations for the sale of these assets were in progress and in the
opinion of the directors, the sale was highly probable to be completed within 12 months from the end of
that reporting period. During the year ended 31 December 2023, these items of machinery and furniture and
fixtures have been disposed of and resulted in a loss on disposal of HK$964,000 (note 7).
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31 December 2023

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 60 to 120 days.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the invoice date and issuance date, respectively, is as follows:

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within 3 months 567,760 532,780

4 to 6 months 292,661 254,025

7 to 12 months 18,814 29,030

Over 1 year 11,562 6,768

890,797 822,603

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Deferred income (note 28) 807 858

Contract liabilities* 31,646 53,851

Other payables® 543,832 756,212

Accruals 500,902 634,596

1,077,187 1,445,517

# Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance from customers for the sale of goods.
The contract liabilities as at 1 January 2022 amounted to HK$32,483,000. The decrease (2022: increase) in contract
liabilities in 2023 was mainly due to a decrease (2022: increase) in advances received from customers in relation to the
sale of goods at the end of the year.
## Other payables are non-interest-bearing.
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26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

27.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

2023 2022

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

Forward currency contracts - - = 1,676

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts to reduce its exposure to foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations. These forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge purposes and are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging currency derivatives,
net, amounting to HK$15,855,000 (2022: HK$45,885,000) were debited to the statement of profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%)  Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000

Current
Syndicated bank loans 6.83 2024 412,421 6.10 2023 274,842
Other bank loans and other
borrowing 1.93-8.42 2024 2,126,718 0.56-7.51 2000285 17 77123 S10)2
2,539,139 3,048,744
Non-current
Syndicated bank loans 6.83 2025 549,894 6.10 2024-2025 961,947
Other bank loans and other
borrowing 1.93-2.80 2025-2027 47,581 1.32-1.68 2024-2027 32,437
597,475 994,384
3,136,614 4,043,128
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27.

28.

120

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
Repayable:
Within one year 2,539,139 3,048,744
In the second year 589,793 441,052
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 7,682 553882
3,136,614 4,043,128
Notes:
(@ Certain of the Group’s bank loans were secured by:
0] the pledge of certain of the Group’s land and buildings situated in the ROC, which had a net carrying value at

the end of the reporting period of HK$20,413,000 (2022: HK$20,223,000); and

(ii) corporate guarantees executed by the Company to the extent of HK$2,301,927,000 (2022: HK$2,931,266,000)
as at the end of the reporting period.

(b) The Group's bank and other borrowings with carrying amounts of HK$2,734,917,000 (2022: HK$3,728,254,000),

HK$19,590,000 (2022: HK$20,744,000) and HK$382,107,000 (2022: HK$294,130,000) are denominated in United States
dollars (“US$”), New Taiwan dollars (“NT$") and RMB, respectively.

DEFERRED INCOME

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

Deferred income related to the government

subsidies for acquisition of assets (i) 41,729 43,483
Current portion (note 25) (807) (858)
Non-current portion 40,922 42,625

Note:
(i) Deferred income represented government subsidies relating to acquisition of assets received by certain of the Group's

subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

29. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each 200,000 200,000

Issued and fully paid:
1,200,008,445 (2022: 1,200,008,445) shares of HK$0.1 each 120,001 120,001

30. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS
(@)  Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, persons that provide research, development or other technological support to the Group,
the Group’s shareholders and the advisers or consultants of the Group and participants who have
contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
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31 December 2023

30. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(@)  Share option scheme (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date of offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer
of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the daily quotation sheet on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of the offer of the share options; and (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group does not have a past practice of cash settlement
for these share options. The Group accounts for the Scheme as an equity-settled plan.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year, no share options were granted or cancelled by the Company under the Scheme and
no share options were expired.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:

2023 2022

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number

exercise price of options  exercise price of options
HK$ HK$
per share per share

At 1 January 1.48 31,976,000 1.48 33,512,000
Forfeited 1.48 (3,638,000) 1.48 (1,536,000)
At 31 December 1.48 28,338,000 1.48 31,976,000
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31 December 2023

30. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(a)

Share option scheme (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2023
Number of options Exercise price” Exercise period
HKS$ per share
164,400 1.48 7-11-2018 to 31-8-2024
514,400 1.48 7-11-2019 to 31-8-2024
515,600 1.48 7-11-2020 to 31-8-2024
13,572,800 1.48 7-11-2021 to 31-8-2024
13,570,800 1.48 7-11-2022 to 31-8-2024
28,338,000
2022
Number of options Exercise price” Exercise period
HK$ per share
184,400 1.48 7-11-2018 to 31-8-2024
534,400 1.48 7-11-2019 to 31-8-2024
538,400 1.48 7-11-2020 to 31-8-2024
15,360,400 1.48 7-11-2021 to 31-8-2024
15,358,400 1.48 7-11-2022 to 31-8-2024
31,976,000
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, share option expenses of HK$6,109,000 previously recognised
in employee share-based compensation reserve were transferred to retained profits upon the forfeiture
of share options.

The Group recognised a share option expense of HK$2,276,000 during the year ended 31 December
2022 in respect of share options granted/replaced in the prior years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 28,338,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, representing approximately 2.4% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 28,338,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$2,834,000 and share premium of HK$39,106,000 (before issue expenses).
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31 December 2023

30. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(b) Share award plan

The board of directors approved the adoption of the new share award plan (the “Share Award Plan”)
with effect from 19 May 2017. The purpose of the Share Award Plan is to (i) recognise and reward the
contribution of certain eligible participants to the growth and development of the Group through an
award of shares and to give incentives thereto in order to retain them for the continual operation and

development of the Group; and (ii) attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

The vesting period of the awarded shares is determined by the board of directors.

As at 31 December 2023, a total of 354,345,774 (2022: 354,345,774) shares were held by the Bank

of Communications Trustee Limited, the trustee under the Share Award Plan.

31. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the prior and current years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 55 and 56 of the financial statements.

32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests are set out below:

2023 2022

Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

Wah Yuen and its subsidiaries (“Wah Yuen Group”) 40.72% 40.72%
Mindforce and its subsidiaries (“Mindforce Group”) 29% 29%
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$000
Loss for the year allocated to non-controlling interests:
Wah Yuen Group (80,379) (29,297)
Mindforce Group (20,675) (44,958)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests at the
reporting date:
Wah Yuen Group 1,161,189 1,289,833
Mindforce Group 35,213 61,775
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of the above partly-owned subsidiaries.
The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

Wah Yuen Mindforce
Group Group
HK$’000 HK$'000

2023
Revenue 2,352,848 567,448
Total expenses (2,550,243) (638,742)
Loss for the year (197,395) (71,294)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year (684,234) (125,559)
Current assets 2,392,350 353,713
Non-current assets 2,197,370 557,928
Current liabilities (1,701,532) (633,784)
Non-current liabilities (46,756) (156,355)
Net cash flows from operating activities 421,961 141,291
Net cash flows used in investing activities (368,219) (12,518)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (34,135) (156,747)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 19,607 (27,974)
Wah Yuen Mindforce
Group Group
HK$'000 HK$'000

2022
Revenue 2,785,604 827,851
Total expenses (2,857,552) (982,879)
Loss for the year (71,948) (155,028)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year (490,056) (202,932)
Current assets 2,949,123 514,759
Non-current assets 2,530,650 654,880
Current liabilities (2,290,913) (799,668)
Non-current liabilities (31,505) (156,424)
Net cash flows from operating activities 600,215 19,263
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 4,280 (10,928)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (362,597) 43,150
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 241,898 51,485
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

126

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(i)

(iii)

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of HK$8,785,000 (2022: HK$300,407,000) and HK$8,008,000 (2022: HK$300,407,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for its leasehold land (2022: leasehold land and
properties). For the non-cash additions to right-of-use assets of HK$8,785,000, HK$777,000
(2022: Nil) of which was transferred from prepayment during the year.

During the year, the proceeds from disposal of non-current assets classified as held for sale of
HK$4,309,000 were not yet received and included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
as at 31 December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised compensation income received
in prior years of HK$726,350,000, which was included in other payables and accruals as at 31
December 2021, as subsidy income of HK$69,429,000 for relocation and compensation income
of HK$656,921,000 for surrendering of certain items of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets upon completion of the Relocation (note 5).
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31 December 2023

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b)  Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
2023

Interest-bearing
Lease bank and other

liabilities borrowings
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2023 266,277 4,043,128
Changes from financing cash flows (88,223) (831,207)
New leases 8,008 -
Early termination (13,127) -
Lease modification (28,250) -
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 433 -
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows (433) -
Foreign exchange movement (2,320) (75,307)
At 31 December 2023 142,365 3,136,614
2022
Lease Interest-bearing
liabilities  bank borrowings
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2022 1,187 4,852,654
Changes from financing cash flows (32,257) (736,231)
New leases 300,407 -
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 1,020 -
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows (1,020) -
Foreign exchange movement (3,870) (73,295)
At 31 December 2022 266,277 4,043,128
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31 December 2023

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash flows is as follows:

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within operating activities 2,453 4,163
Within financing activities 88,223 S2.2'57
90,676 36,420

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

35. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following contractual commitments as at the end of the reporting period:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Buildings 44,625 11,242
Machinery and office equipment 208,554 82,162
Total contractual commitments 253,179 93,404

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with related parties during the year:

Notes 2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Lease payments paid to:

Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen (i) 142 146
Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang (ii) 59 60
AR BIR A R(ARAE") (iii) 301 308
Ms. Lin Mei Li (iv) 62 63
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31 December 2023

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with related parties during the year: (continued)
Notes:

(i) Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen is the daughter of Mr. Cheng Li-Yu, a director of the Company. The rentals were determined
at rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group only
entered into a short-term lease agreement with Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen.

(ii) Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang is the son of Mr. Cheng Li-Yu, a director of the Company. The rentals were determined at
rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group only
entered into a short-term lease agreement with Ms. Cheng Yung Kang.

(iii) Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen and Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang are the directors of &R%E. Ms. Lin Mei-Li, the spouse of Mr. Cheng
Li-Yu, a director of the Company, Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen and Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang are the shareholders of RJE.
The rentals were determined at rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group only entered into a short-term lease agreement with A iE.

(iv) Ms. Lin Mei-Li is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Li-Yu, a director of the Company. The rentals were determined at rates
mutually agreed between the relevant parties. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group only entered
into a short-term lease agreement with Ms. Lin Mei-Li.

The above related party transactions also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group (excluding directors’
remuneration):

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

Short term employee benefits 7,500 9,136
Employee share-based compensation expenses - 784
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 7,500 9,920

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

2023
Financial assets

Equity

investment

designated at

Financial fair value

assets at through other

amortised comprehensive
cost income Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity investment designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income = 25,236 25,236
Trade receivables 2,486,447 - 2,486,447
Financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables 79,848 - 79,848
Pledged and restricted bank balances 111,876 - 111,876
Cash and cash equivalents 1,221,852 - 1,221,852

3,900,023 25,236 3,925,259

Financial liabilities

Financial
liability at
fair value Financial
through profit liabilities at
or loss - held amortised
for trading cost Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade and bills payables - 890,797 890,797
Financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals - 573,940 573,940
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings - 3,136,614 3,136,614
Lease liabilities - 142,365 142,365
- 4,743,716 4,743,716
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37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

31 December 2023

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2022
Financial assets

Equity investment designated at fair value

Financial

assets at
amortised
cost
HK$'000

Equity
investment
designated at
fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
HK$'000

Total
HK$'000

through other comprehensive income - 13,489 13,489
Trade receivables 2,420,946 - 2,420,946
Financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables 91,381 - 91,381
Pledged and restricted bank balances 102,659 - 102,659
Cash and cash equivalents 1,706,797 - 1,706,797

4,321,783 13,489 4,335,272

Financial liabilities

Financial
liability at
fair value Financial
through profit liabilities at
or loss — held amortised
for trading cost Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade and bills payables - 822,603 822,603
Financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals - 790,854 790,854
Derivative financial instrument 1,676 - 1,676
Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 4,043,128 4,043,128
Lease liabilities - 266,277 266,277
1,676 5,922,862 5,924,538
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38.

132

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values

2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000

Financial assets
Equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive

income:
Overseas listed equity investment,
at fair value 25,236 13,489 25,236 13,489

Financial liability
Derivative financial instrument - 1,676 - 1,676

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, pledged and restricted bank balances, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
bills payables, financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals and the current portion of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the chief financial officer is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance department reports
directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022 were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair value of the listed equity investment was based on a quoted market price.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. Derivative financial instruments, including forward currency contracts,
are measured using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing using present value calculations. The models
incorporate various market observable inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange
spot and forward rates. The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values.
As at 31 December 2022, the mark-to-market value of the derivative position was net of a credit valuation
adjustment attributable to derivative counterparty default risk.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value
As at 31 December 2023

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income:
Overseas listed equity investment 25,236 - - 25,236
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value (continued)
As at 31 December 2022

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices Ne[aliile=Tals Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income:
Overseas listed equity investment 13,489 - - 13,489

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2023.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2022: Nil).

Liability measured at fair value
As at 31 December 2022

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
MENGES inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Derivative financial instruments - 1,676 - 1,676

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2022: Nil).
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, pledged and restricted bank balances, and cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, other receivables, trade and bills payables and other payables
and accruals, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts. The purpose
is to manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt
obligations denominated in US$ with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rate of the
United States dollar, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax.

Decrease/
Increase/ (increase)
(decrease) in in loss
basis points before tax
HK$'000

2023
United States dollar 50 (13,675)
United States dollar (50) 13,675
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
HK$'000

2022
United States dollar 50 (18,641)
United States dollar (50) 18,641
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39.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily to certain
trade receivables, trade and bills payables, certain cash and cash equivalents, and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings in currencies other than the functional currencies of the Group’s operating subsidiaries.
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to reduce its foreign currency risk, but the transactions do
not qualify for hedge accounting.

Since most of the Group’s revenue is denominated in US$ and most of the Group’s expenses are denominated
in RMB, the appreciation of RMB has negative effects on the Group’s profitability.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Renminbi exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss)
before tax (arising from Renminbi denominated financial instruments).

Decrease/
Increase/ (increase)
(decrease) in in loss
exchange rate before tax
% HK$'000

2023
If US$ strengthens against RMB 7.85 192,378
If US$ weakens against RMB (7.85) (192,378)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
% HK$’000

2022
If US$ strengthens against RMB 13.48 334,779
If US$ weakens against RMB (13.48) (334,779)

Ju Teng International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade receivables included in the consolidated statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s trade receivables. The Group performs
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions and requires no collateral from its customers.

The Group has a significant concentration of credit risk in relation to trade receivables as the trade receivables
due from the five largest customers accounted for 82% (2022: 82%) of the Group’s trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period. The loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables was based upon a review
of the expected collectability of all trade receivables.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2023

12-month Lifetime
ECLs ECLs

Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade receivables” - 2,490,039 2,490,039
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

— Normal™ 79,848 - 79,848
Pledged and restricted bank balances
— Not yet past due 111,876 - 111,876
Cash and cash equivalents
— Not yet past due 1,221,852 - 1,221,852
1,413,576 2,490,039 3,903,615
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31 December 2023

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2022

12-month Lifetime
ECLs ECLs

Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Trade receivables” - 2,426,112 2,426,112
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

— Normal*™” 91,381 = 91,381
Pledged and restricted bank balances
— Not yet past due 102,659 - 102,659
Cash and cash equivalents
— Not yet past due 1,706,797 - 1,706,797
1,900,837 2,426,112 4,326,949
*, For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision

matrix is disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

xok The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e. g., trade receivables) and projected cash
flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans and lease liabilities. In addition, banking facilities have been put in place for contingency purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

2023
On demand or 2to5 Over

within 1 year years 5 years Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade and bills payables 890,797 - - 890,797

Lease liabilities 134,839 2,382 13,288 150,509
Financial liabilities included in other

payables and accruals 573,940 - - 573,940

Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 2,620,898 625,261 - 3,246,159
4,220,474 627,643 13,288 4,861,405
2022
On demand or 2to5 Over

within 1 year VEEIS 5 years Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade and bills payables 822,603 - - 822,603

Lease liabilities 245,472 15,546 13,785 274,803
Financial liabilities included in other

payables and accruals 790,854 - - 790,854

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 3,093,878 1,014,198 - 4,108,076

4,952,807 1,029,744 13,785 5,996,336

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
an individual equity investment classified as an equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (note 21) as at 31 December 2023. The Group’s listed investment is listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange (the “TSEC") and valued at the quoted market price at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)

The market equity index for the following stock exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting periods, and its respective highest and lowest points during the
year were as follows:

31 December High/low 31 December High/low

2023 2023 2022 2022

ROC — TSEC Weighted Index 17,931 17,946/14,002 14,138 18,620/12,629

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the fair value of the equity
investment, with all other variables held constant and before any impact on deferred tax, based on its carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

Carrying Increase/
amount of (decrease) Increase/

equity in equity (decrease)
investment price in equity*
HK$'000 % HK$'000

2023
Investment listed in:
ROC - Equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive
income 25,236 48.85 12,328
25,236 (48.85) (12,328)

2022
Investment listed in:
ROC - Equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive
income 13,489 33.33 4,496
13,489 (33.33) (4,496)

d Excluding retained profits
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as the total bank and other borrowings
divided by the total assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Total bank and other borrowings 3,136,614 4,043,128
Total non-current assets 6,527,161 7,545,933
Total current assets 5,628,353 6,643,997
Total assets 12,155,514 14,189,930
Gearing ratio 26% 28%
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31 December 2023

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting period is
as follows:

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries 1,080,944 1,080,944

CURRENT ASSETS

Due from subsidiaries 5,017,005 5,017,797
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 252 288
Restricted bank balances 87,093 68,894
Cash and cash equivalents 5,763 14,053
Total current assets 5,110,113 5, 110)1] 0532

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Due to a subsidiary 1,986,635 1,926,635
Other payables and accruals 5,669 5,291
Total current liabilities 1,992,304 1,931,926
NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,117,809 3,169,106
Net assets 4,198,753 4,250,050
EQUITY

Issued capital 120,001 120,001
Reserves (note) 4,078,752 4,130,049
Total equity 4,198,753 4,250,050
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42.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Shares
held under Employee
Share share share-based
premium award  compensation Other Retained
account plan reserve reserves profits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2022 187,919 (745,831) 57,971 316,058 3,740,190 3,556,307
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 639,119 639,119
Dividend received under the share award
plan - 28,348 - - - 28,348
Share-based compensation arrangements - - 2,276 - - 2,276
2021 final dividend - - - - (96,001) (96,001)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 187,919 (717,483) 60,247 316,058 4,283,308 4,130,049
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (9,014) (9,014)
Dividend received under the share award
plan - 17,717 - - - 17,717

Transfer of employee share-based
compensation reserve upon the

forfeiture of share options - - (6,109) - 6,109 -
2022 final dividend - - - - (60,000) (60,000)
As 31 December 2023 187,919 (699,766) 54,138 316,058 4,220,403 4,078,752

The employee share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted which
are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy of share-based payments in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. The amount will be (i) transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised; (ii) transferred to retained profits should the related options expire; or (iii) transferred
to retained profits should the related options be forfeited.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Disposal for Land Resumption as detailed in note 13 was subsequently approved by shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 13 March 2024. The Disposal for
Land Resumption is scheduled to be completed in 2024 and is expected to result in a gain on disposal before
tax of approximately HK$548,854,000.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March 2024.
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